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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ: I would like to

          3  make sure that I have in front of us here the lawyer

          4  to the Committee, Maritza Bolanos.  Please, can you

          5  come and sit?  We are going to begin this meeting.

          6  Anne Emerman, thank you.  All right.

          7                 This is a joint hearing that we are

          8  going to have today.  It is the Transportation

          9  Committee and the Committee on Mental Health, Mental

         10  Retardation, Alcohol, Substance Abuse, and People

         11  with Disability.  The hearing that we are going to

         12  have today is on the issue of the Waterways and the

         13  accessibility for people in wheelchairs.  Before we

         14  go directly into the Committee,

         15  it is my custom to introduce the people who are

         16  members of this Committee, and at this point I will

         17  ask the staff of the Committee to introduce

         18  themself, if it is possible, please.

         19                 MS. BOLANOS:  Hello, my name is

         20  Maritza Bolanos, and I am the Counsel to the

         21  Committee.

         22                 MS. EMERMAN:  Anne Emerman, Staff to

         23  the Committee.

         24                 MR. POLENBERG:  Michael Polenberg,

         25  Council Finance.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Okay, the

          3  Chairman of the Transportation Committee just

          4  arrived, he is on his way right here. That is okay,

          5  do not worry about it, introduce yourself.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Good afternoon.  My

          7  name is John Liu, and I have the privilege of

          8  chairing the Transportation Committee and Co-

          9  Chairing with Council Member Margarita Lopez, this

         10  afternoon's hearing.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  And the lawyer to

         12  the Committee on Transportation, can you introduce

         13  yourself, please?

         14                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  Hi my name is Mitchell

         15  Schwartz, I am Counsel to the Committee on

         16  Transportation.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you, then

         18  at this point, and I am Councilwoman Margarita

         19  Lopez, Chair of the Committee on Mental Health,

         20  Mental Retardation, Alcohol, Substance Abuse and

         21  People With Disabilities.  And at this point I am

         22  going to read my opening statement.

         23                 Good afternoon, I am Margarita Lopez,

         24  and I am the Chair of the Committee on Mental

         25  Health, Mental Retardation, Alcoholism, Drug Abuse,
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          2  and Disability Services.  I would like to welcome

          3  everyone here to this joint hearing of the Committee

          4  on Mental Health, Mental Retardation, Alcoholism,

          5  Drug Abuse, and Disability Services with the

          6  Committee on Transportation, Chaired by my

          7  colleague, Council Member John Liu.  As we are

          8  joined by Council members, I will ask my colleagues

          9  to introduce themself to you as they arrive here.

         10                 Today's hearing will emphasize on

         11  Intro. No. 261, a proposed local law known as the

         12   "Accessible Passenger Ferry Services Transportation

         13  Act".  I now ask my colleague, Chair Liu, to

         14  introduce himself and speak on the issue.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you very

         16  much, Madam Chair. Once again, my name if John Liu,

         17  and I have the privilege of chairing the City

         18  Council's Committee of Transportation.  This

         19  afternoon, we have convened at this very important

         20  hearing on the accessibility to our City's ferries

         21  for people who require the assistance of a

         22  wheelchair.  And this is a topic that is one of

         23  several different topics, all related with regard to

         24  making sure that our City's transportation systems,

         25  whether it be the ferries or other mass transit
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          2  forms are, indeed, accessible to all people, all New

          3  Yorkers, particularly with regard to those who use

          4  wheelchairs, and scooters, and other mobility

          5  assistance equipment.              And so I think

          6  that today we have a number of witnesses who will be

          7  able to testify very ably to this issue, and I look

          8  forward very much to hearing from all of the

          9  advocates, as well as the industry representatives

         10  here today.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I would like to

         13  say that I introduced this local law in September of

         14  2002, after investigating many repeated complaints

         15  from people with disabilities, about barriers to

         16  access on public ferry boats, facility services, and

         17  equipment.  Beginning in May of 2002, the staff of

         18  my Committee conducted several fact- finding trips

         19  to survey the ferry system in New York City.  We

         20  found that the current ferry system has substantial

         21  access barriers, and that even recently, revamped

         22  ferry terminals are inaccessible to many people with

         23  disabilities.  Based on our findings, I concluded

         24  that there exists a lack of standards and uniformity

         25  with regard to access to the piers, terminal, slips,
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          2  vessels, ramps and in the ferry transportation

          3  system.  And, even though some piers and terminals

          4  are wheelchair accessible, other barriers create

          5  obstacles to access, such as, inaccessible ramps,

          6  slips and ferry vessels.

          7                 We found this situation at Pier 11

          8  located at Wall Street, and we will show slides to

          9  illustrate these barriers.  Pier 11 which is a major

         10  ferry hub, links many routes from Lower Manhattan to

         11  points such as Port Liberty and Colgate Palmolive

         12  Building in Jersey City; Port Imperial in Weehawken,

         13  New Jersey; Atlantic Highlands on the New Jersey

         14  Shore; KeyPort in Monmouth County, New Jersey;

         15  Liberty Harbor Marine in South Amboy; Glen Cove on

         16  Long Island; Hoboken in New Jersey, and East 34th

         17  and East 90th Street in Manhattan, to mention a few.

         18                 Because Pier 11 is an integral part

         19  of the metropolitan ferry system, a wheelchair

         20  accessible route through Pier 11 is essential to the

         21  City's system of ferry transportation and through

         22  our intermodal public transportation system.

         23  Especially, because public transportation system are

         24  interconnected, it is critical that both existing

         25  and prospective ferry terminals and vessels be fully
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          2  accessible.  Approximately two years ago, the

          3  federal government's Architectural and

          4  Transportation Barriers Compliance Board, known as

          5  the "Access Board", after many years of study

          6  proposed a standard and specification for access

          7  compliance with the "ADA" for ferries and other

          8  waterborne vessels.  However, the review process for

          9  this proposed federal regulation, which begin in

         10  2000, is lengthy in nature, and it covers many

         11  different types of vessels, includes large cargo and

         12  cruise ships.  That process requires input from

         13  localities across the nation, and has many

         14  competitive interests in subjects to changing

         15  administration policies and processing Washington,

         16  D.C.  Such that many years must pass before the

         17  proposed federal regulation become law.

         18                 Therefore, at this time, the City

         19  cannot afford to wait for the "Access Board" to

         20  implement a standards on the federal level.

         21  According to a New York Times article of April 2002,

         22  more than $300 million worth of ferry projects are

         23  to be completed by the next year in 2004.  The New

         24  York ferry system is ready for tremendous growth as

         25  it will be an important component of the
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          2  transportation system in place for the Olympics in

          3  the year 2012.           New York City is now

          4  actively seeking the World Games, and we hope that

          5  the City will be successful in the quest for the

          6  2012 Olympics, and even that will bring significant

          7  economic development to our City, and I applaud that

          8  effort. However, people with disabilities must be

          9  included and have access to the rapid development

         10  ferry system now.

         11                 Under the American with Disability

         12  Act, the City and other entities that provide ferry

         13  services, facilities, and vessels have the legal

         14  obligation to provide access in a non-

         15  discriminatory manner, as public accommodation.

         16  This local law, Intro No. 261 incorporates certain

         17  of the "Access Boards" proposed standards and

         18  specification, and refers to "ADA" accessibility

         19  guidelines for construction knows as "ADAAG," which

         20  provide industry standards for design and building

         21  access.

         22                 Today, we will receive testimony from

         23  experts on accessibility, architects, and engineers,

         24  representative of the City's Administration,

         25  advocates from the disabled members of the
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          2  disability community, and representatives of the

          3  companies that operate ferries in New York City

          4  waters.  In particular, the Committee will learn

          5  about the nearly 10 years of struggles that people

          6  with disability have engaged and to secure their

          7  civil right to access the ferry system and its

          8  interconnected components such as the shuttle buses.

          9

         10                 Based on the results of my staff,

         11  several recent fact- finding surveys undertaken

         12  due*to complaints received by my office, it is clear

         13  that New York City is expanding ferry services

         14  requires standards that both guarantee full

         15  accessible piers, terminals, slips, ramps, and

         16  vessels, as well as ensure the safety of seniors and

         17  children.

         18                 Today we also will show a video tape

         19  showing raw footage of access barriers found by

         20  staff at pier slips and ferry vessels.  People with

         21  disabilities are simply not assured that they can

         22  access all public passenger piers, docks, slips, and

         23  ferry boats in the City.  Intro. No. 261 will not

         24  only benefit disabled members of the public, but

         25  it's particular beneficial to seniors. The majority
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          2  of the City population is aging, and is estimated to

          3  live well beyond the traditional retirement years,

          4  into their late 70's, 80's in relatively good

          5  health.  Nonetheless, this significant population of

          6  seniors face a future of mobility impairments, as

          7  well as other disabled impairments, which are a

          8  natural part of the aging process.  This proposed

          9  local law, the Accessible Passenger Ferry Services

         10  Transportation Act, will set uniform standards to

         11  ensure that all New Yorkers can access and safely

         12  ride the ferries.

         13                 The specific standards for

         14  accessibility and safety provide in this proposed

         15  local law comply with ADA's mandate of reasonable

         16  accommodation for the disabled, while addressing

         17  serious concern of public safety and welfare, and

         18  safeguarding the passage of children and infants in

         19  strollers and babies carriages.

         20                 An accessible route is of primary

         21  importance to ensure the civil rights of people with

         22  disabilities, therefore, an inclusive city must seek

         23  to ensure that waterborne passenger services, and

         24  the ferry transportation industry minimize the

         25  tremendous and unfair burden placed on people with
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          2  disabilities. Disabled persons, like non- disabled

          3  persons, use ferry transportation services for daily

          4  living activities, such as commuting to work,

          5  attending medical appointments, pursuing education

          6  activities, and enjoying cultural, entertainment,

          7  and other public events.

          8                 At the turn of the 21st Century this

          9  City must firmly emphasize the importance of access

         10  and safety by systematically protecting the rights

         11  of individuals with disabilities to use this sector

         12  of the public transportation system.  It is

         13  unacceptable for me that we continue to be in a city

         14  that celebrated the birth of Martin Luther King

         15  yesterday, understanding that he spoke about

         16  inclusion and elimination of segregation, and is

         17  still today, in New York City, we think that it is

         18  okay to segregate people with disabilities, and we

         19  do it in a day to day basis, condemning and denying

         20  the gift that Dr. King gave to us, inclusion for all

         21  and justice for all.

         22                 With that we will begin presenting to

         23  you the video tape, but before I go in that

         24  direction I would like very quickly for every member

         25  of the Committee to introduce themself, and to say
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          2  from where they are, and their name.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  How are you?

          4  Council Member Erik Martin Dilan, 37th District,

          5  Brooklyn.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Oliver

          7  Koppell, 11th District, Bronx.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK:  Larry

          9  Seabrook, 12th District, Bronx.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you, and I

         11  forgot to mention one thing, the piece of

         12  legislation at the current moment have 41 prime

         13  sponsors, three Borough Presidents, and the Public

         14  Advocate is a prime sponsor of this bill.  The Bronx

         15  Borough President, the Manhattan Borough President,

         16  and the Queens Borough President are in support of

         17  this bill.  Thank you.

         18                 (Video Shown.)

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  If you notice in

         20  here, it is impossible for that wheelchair to go

         21  down because it's a step there, and it's not a way

         22  to meet the difference in there.  If you notice,

         23  people have to go up a step at the end, and that is

         24  impossible for a person in a wheelchair to be able

         25  to access the boat.  And then, when you finish the
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          2  ramp, you have to go down and then you have to go up

          3  in order to be able to have access to that boat.

          4                 I am going to move a little forward

          5  to show you other areas, other piers, where the same

          6  situation exists.  Stop. Sometime in order to have

          7  access to a vessel, you have to come out of a pier

          8  to a slip that is going to get you into it, and for

          9  the most part, it is impossible to have access in a

         10  wheelchair.  The pier may be accessible, but from

         11  that point down, it is not.  It is impossible for a

         12  wheelchair to negotiate that piece in there, and

         13  then in top of that, in the boat, you cannot go

         14  through with a wheelchair because it's a step in

         15  between, in the door of the boat, if you notice.

         16  Fast forward.  Okay.

         17                 This is the pier that goes to

         18  Hoboken.  As you see it there, again, it's

         19  impossible for the wheelchair to go up from the pier

         20  to the boat.  Fast forward.  Stop.

         21                 This is something that I am going to

         22  sell to Channel 4 for Saturday Night Live.  And I am

         23  going to make a lot of money with this.  Check this.

         24

         25                 I just want to call your attention to

                                                            17

          1  MENTAL HEALTH AND TRANSPORTATION

          2  the fact that some wheelchairs have three (3) tires

          3  to it.  I wonder how they plan to negotiate that one

          4  and this one.  You can fast forward.

          5                 I want to call your attention to the

          6  kind of ramps that are available in order to make

          7  people being capable of going from one point to

          8  another.  That ramp that you saw there, forward it,

          9  keep going, there leave it there.  This ramp that

         10  you see here, it is impossible for a wheelchair to

         11  go through because it is too narrow, then even when

         12  the ramp is in place, it is not possible to use.

         13  The ramp is not possible to go over unless somebody

         14  help the person who is using the wheelchair to be

         15  able to go up, and still the wheelchair cannot go up

         16  because the tire is not having traction, it have

         17  need to be pulled up.  That is the ramp that I show

         18  you in the beginning of the movie.  Okay, fast

         19  forward.  Stop.

         20                 Look at this one.  The wheelchair

         21  cannot go through. Okay, fast forward.  Stop.

         22                 You see that step, it is not possible

         23  for a wheelchair to negotiate that.  This is Pier

         24  11, and Pier 11 have many ramps in the pier.  The

         25  majority of them are not wheelchair accessible by
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          2  the width, or because they are too high, and it is

          3  impossible to make a wheelchair to go through, or

          4  because a steps are before the ramp; and in order

          5  for you to get to the ramp you have to go through a

          6  series of steps first.  That slip is too high for a

          7  wheelchair to be able to go through.

          8                 And I think that this is enough

          9  examples in the movie for me to show you how pier

         10  after pier have these barriers in place, in a

         11  consistent manner.  And the sad part of this movie

         12  is that is no reason because the technology exists

         13  for none of this to be.  This never should have been

         14  done in the way that have been done.  Never!  Thank

         15  you.  We are going to stop it.

         16                 And now we are going to have a Power

         17  presentation from the computer system for you to

         18  appreciate what is it what we are talking about.

         19  Can you proceed with that?

         20                 (Power presentation.)

         21                 MS. BOLANOS:  This is the pier on

         22  38th Street on the Hudson, that New York Waterways

         23  operates.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  In this

         25  PowerPoint presentation you can what the problem is,
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          2  I do not need to explain that to you. I do not need

          3  to explain to you what the problem is in here,

          4  obviously, this is too high, and at the end she will

          5  not be able to negotiate getting in the boat either.

          6    Same problem from this point to this point, it is

          7  impossible to bring a wheelchair up.  In here, it is

          8  impossible to go from this point to this point, if

          9  you are in a wheelchair, if you are a senior, if you

         10  are a child, this is unsafe.  Same problem, same

         11  issue plus that in order to get into the vessel, it

         12  is a step that you have to go over.  Repeat problems

         13  again in here.

         14                 I am not going to call the attention

         15  to the second floor of the boat, at this point,

         16  because I do not think it is necessary, I think that

         17  what we talking about is accessibility, at least to

         18  the first level of the boat at this point.  Yes.

         19  Same issue again.

         20                 MS. BOLANOS:  This is the pier at the

         21  World Financial Center.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  This was

         23  something that was unbelievable for me when I saw

         24  it.  You saw it in the movie, and in order for

         25  somebody to go through this, this is so dangerous,
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          2  as we speak right now, that it is absolutely absurd

          3  to even put this in place.  If you are going to put

          4  in place a ramp, at least, put a ramp that is more

          5  safe than this one.

          6                 I do not need to speak on this issue,

          7  it is clear. You can not negotiate here, you can not

          8  negotiate at the end of it either.  We wanted for

          9  you to see the deepness of this, we are talking

         10  about almost 3 inches from the floor up.  We are

         11  talking about 5 inches and a half.  Same story

         12  again, and this is a ramp. Same problem, it is too

         13  high for a wheelchair to be able to go up and down.

         14  And keep in mind, the technology exists for none of

         15  this to be in place.  Same, same situation.

         16                 The width is perfect, the barriers

         17  are perfect, it's no problem with this, it's

         18  perfect, then the technology do exist. Here you have

         19  it.  You see how perfect?  We do not need to

         20  reinvent the planet, it is here.  Keep going.  Again

         21  technology from here this comes down, it move with

         22  the tide, up and down, and it is not a problem,

         23  therefore, the only thing that we have to do is to

         24  do it right.  Keep going.  And that is the end of

         25  this.

                                                            21

          1  MENTAL HEALTH AND TRANSPORTATION

          2                 I want to thank everybody who

          3  participated in putting this together,, particularly

          4  the staff of the Committee of People with

          5  Disabilities, and particularly I want to thank

          6  somebody who left the Council, who retired, Maritza

          7  remind me of the name.             MS. BOLANOS:

          8  Adrianna Garcia.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Adrianna Garcia

         10  who was kind enough to help me with this.

         11                 MS. BOLANOS:  She is an architect.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  She is an

         13  architect with incredible, valuable help from her

         14  part.  And, also I want to thank Frieda, Anne

         15  Emerman, and Alexander, for the kind amount of time

         16  that they provide to show you what this issue is

         17  about.  Thank you to all of you.

         18                 With that, we close the PowerPoint

         19  presentation, and we are going to invite the

         20  Administration to come and speak with us right now,

         21  if they are present at this moment.

         22                 Okay, then please call the three

         23  first witnesses. The Administration is not here yet,

         24  they are on the way here.

         25                 MS. BOLANOS:  First panel of
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          2  witnesses are Alexander Wood, Frieda Zames, Sidney

          3  Emerman, Stacy LaRoche, and Jean Ryan.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Council member,

          5  can you introduced yourself now, and Brewer.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  Good

          7  afternoon.  I am Helen Foster, I apologize for being

          8  late.  I just answered the phone one time too many,

          9  and people just kept wanting me, so I apologize. And

         10  I want to applaud you for this because I think we

         11  take for granted accessibility, and that

         12  presentation brought it home for me, so I applaud

         13  you for doing this.  Thank you.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I am Gale

         15  Brewer from the West Side of Manhattan.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  I am sorry.

         17  I am Helen Foster from the Bronx.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I would like to

         19  ask you to make your presentation no more than 3

         20  minutes.  We want to ask you questions, and I am

         21  going to ask you very kindly, do not extend yourself

         22  over 3 minutes.  In order to help you, we going to

         23  put this clock in place, and when the ring go off, I

         24  am going to remind you that that happened, and then

         25  you need to stop and let the next person to speak,
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          2  and that way we can conduct this hearing in the best

          3  way possible.  Thank you.

          4                 Which one is the first one who is

          5  going to speak? Okay, Alexander, okay.  Swear them

          6  in please.

          7                 MS. BOLANOS:  Please raise your right

          8  hand.  Do you swear that the testimony you are about

          9  to provide before this Committee is the whole truth,

         10  and that you will answer Council members' questions

         11  truthfully?

         12                 ALL:  We do.

         13                 MS. BOLANOS:  Please state your name

         14  and the organization, for the record, before you

         15  begin your testimony, and we will start with

         16  Alexander Wood.  Thank you.

         17                 MR. WOOD:  Hello, and thank you for

         18  the opportunity to speak today on this issue.

         19                 I am Alexander Wood, Executive

         20  Director of the Disabilities Network of New York

         21  City, and I am here today speaking on behalf of the

         22  1.6 million people with physical disabilities living

         23  in New York City.  The Disabilities Network of New

         24  York City is a coalition of consumers, advocates,

         25  and professional organizations representing and

                                                            24

          1  MENTAL HEALTH AND TRANSPORTATION

          2  working on behalf of people of all ages with motor

          3  and sensory disabilities.

          4                 The Network seeks, through systems

          5  advocacy, to promote full participation of people

          6  with physical disabilities in the life of the City

          7  by strengthening appropriate Citywide policies,

          8  resources, services and legal protections, assuring

          9  reasonable accommodations, and building informed and

         10  accurate public perception about people with

         11  disabilities.

         12                 For the last several months, many

         13  members of the disabilities community have been

         14  concerned about the lack of access to service

         15  provided on passenger ferries in New York City.  We

         16  are concerned, particularly because we hear that in

         17  2012 New York City may host the Olympics, and we

         18  hope that that is the case, and that one of the

         19  plans around those events are to link all the

         20  sporting venues around the City via waterborne

         21  transportation.

         22                 As many of you know, after the

         23  Olympics come the Power Olympics, the contest for

         24  athletes with disabilities, and in order to win the

         25  bid, the City must prove itself accessible. Without
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          2  wheelchair accessible taxi's and liveries, without a

          3  workable subway system, less than 40 out of 428

          4  stations are accessible, is that it, is that really

          5  it?  And with the para transit system fraught with

          6  problems, our next best bet is an accessible ferry

          7  system.  Not only is this important for the

          8  Olympics, but it is important for tourism.

          9                 Tourism represents one of the top

         10  revenue producing industries in New York City, I

         11  think it's like number one or number two.  For

         12  several years, I worked as access coordinator at

         13   "Big Apple Greeter", a non- profit working out of

         14  the Manhattan Borough President's Office since 1992,

         15  to welcome visitors to New York by pairing them with

         16  knowledgeable New Yorkers on free, three- to four-

         17  hour visits to neighborhoods that no one loved

         18  because they live of work there.

         19                 Since my days at "Big Apple Greeter",

         20  I have watched New York Waterways shuttle buses pass

         21  on the streets, wondering how they could get away

         22  with providing a service that did not even attempt

         23  to offer accessibility for wheelchair users, as one

         24  look at any of the vehicles in service shows there

         25  is no lift.  In fairness, I have to say that in
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          2  recent meetings with officials, at New York

          3  Waterways last fall, we heard some encouraging

          4  things, they hired a guy to run their bus services

          5  who used to run Para Transit in Nassau County, and

          6  he has 15 wheelchair lift equipped buses on order,

          7  that have probably been delivered by now, because

          8  they were supposed to be in November, and they will

          9  soon be in service, but we have not seen them, they

         10  have not hit the streets yet.

         11                 We looked at plans for a new pier

         12  behind the Javits Center, at a meeting last summer,

         13  at the Economic Development Corporation, which is

         14  responsible for building the piers, and those plans

         15  were accessible by design.  They were plans that the

         16  architects created in April, and the shape of things

         17  to come is improving, but passage of this

         18  legislation will ensure, we hope, that in the future

         19  service will not be slapped together and

         20  accessibility added as an after thought.  And that

         21  is the big problem here, is that no one thought

         22  about it in advance.

         23                 In addition, many members of the

         24  Disabilities Network of New York City have filed a

         25  complaint with the Human Rights Commission about
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          2  denial of service by New York Waterways, last

          3  summer, when we protested inaccessibility at Pier 11

          4  on September 12th, and we have heard nothing for

          5  several months from them.

          6                 Let us resolve to work together to

          7  press our case and have the City Commission on Human

          8  Rights mediate an acceptable settlement.

          9                 Thank you very much for proposing

         10  this legislation. Thank you very much for getting so

         11  much good support behind it, and we look forward to

         12  the accessible shape of things to come.

         13                 MS. LA ROCHE:  Hi, my name is Stacy

         14  La Roche, some of you have seen me before you.

         15  Today, I am representing the Board of Directors from

         16  DIA.  You have seen me in and out of a wheelchair,

         17  my condition varies based on all kinds of things,

         18  who knows what.  And some days I am mobile, most

         19  days I am not.  So, being in a wheelchair, and using

         20  a service dog, is a fact of life for me.

         21                 Before my disability, I rode New York

         22  Waterways Shuttle Bus service and ferry service

         23  everyday to and from work. I work for Paine Webber

         24  in Weehawkin, New Jersey who secured New York

         25  Waterways to transport all of their employees by
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          2  simply showing their employee badge.  Corporate

          3  meetings on both sides of the river were common

          4  place, and the ferry ran every 15 minutes as well

          5  the bus service on a fixed route.  It made life very

          6  convenient.  I also went to school on the other side

          7  of the river, at Stevens, so using the ferries was

          8  very convenient.

          9                 After a long leave of absence for my

         10  disability, I began investigating ways to transition

         11  back to work, that was this summer.  It became

         12  painfully obvious that New York Waterways was

         13  unequipped to handle a disabled daily commuter on

         14  anything but a one- off situation.  They told me

         15  they could not guarantee me, that their one

         16  accessible van, would be available at any given

         17  time.  On any day where there is a Yankee game or

         18  when they contracted out the one accessible shuttle

         19  they had, it was unavailable for use. As the DOT has

         20  continued to deny me my parking pass for New York

         21  City, for people with disabilities for two years

         22  now, driving was not an option.  Taking the ferry

         23  was my only option.  The message seemed clear, you

         24  are now disabled, stay home, you can't work.

         25                 This Initiative 261, the proposed
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          2  chapter addition, is a progressive step forward in

          3  enforcing the spirit of the ADA access, as well as

          4  New York State and City human rights laws.  In the

          5  current legal climate, we have seen our rights

          6  eroded constantly as corporations fight the ADA in

          7  courts.  We applaud the City Council for recognizing

          8  waterborne transportation as an expanding service

          9  that needs to be available to all sections of the

         10  population.  However, as a representative of the

         11  groups listed above, we find the language in certain

         12  sections to fall short of the spirit intended, and

         13  it has been our experience that the corporations

         14  tend to follow the letter of the law, and not the

         15  spirit of the law.

         16                 We are particularly concerned in the

         17  area of service animals.  You received an 8- page

         18  testimony with documentation from the states and 3

         19  different colored pamphlets.  I ask you to look at

         20  Section 19- 703.  Definition H reads "passenger",

         21  should mean every person or service animal, we would

         22  like to see that expanded.  I have the reasons

         23  listed in here.  Definition J that reads, "that

         24  maintains, operates, sponsors vessels, facilities,"

         25  we would like to see that expanded to, "and
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          2  connecting land- based transportation".  All right,

          3  we have seen that they do not use their land- based

          4  transportation properly, and since they are all

          5  registered out of New Jersey and not New York, they

          6  are kind of skating behind some of the rules here.

          7  You can read the justifications for why I am asking

          8  for the changes.

          9                 Section 19- 704, the last sentence

         10  needs to include the broadest definition of service

         11  animals as stated previously. Guide dogs are only

         12  for the sight impaired and blind, they are one type

         13  of service animal.  These amendments should not

         14  restrict the rights of people disabilities granted

         15  under New York City and State Human Rights in the

         16  ADA.  All right and I listed why, and the references

         17  you can look to on what other service animals do.

         18                 On Section 19- 704, line 26, again we

         19  need to consider the value of service animals and

         20  amend this section to read, not only to include the

         21   "death of passengers" unless the definition of a

         22  passenger under 19- 703, definition H also includes

         23  the service animals transported.  These animals are

         24  very expensive, highly trained, and under the law,

         25  and we have several citations to prove it, they are
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          2  not granted the same value as a pet.  All right,

          3  they are highly trained assistants and their value

          4  is just like a personal assistant that travels with

          5  some other disabled people.             Under

          6  Section 19- 720, this availability of any land based

          7  transportation needs to be clarified.  As things

          8  currently stand, accessible transportation is not

          9  readily available, nor has New York Waterways

         10  promised to have an accessible fleet prior to 2011,

         11  and that is per our meeting with Senior Director,

         12  Peter Johansen on September 6th.  At the time of the

         13  meeting, New York Waterways, based in New Jersey,

         14  felt they met the spirit of the law, and that a

         15  commuter had to call in advance, if they wanted an

         16  accessible bus.  If you are working for a

         17  corporation on the other side of the river with a

         18  major Manhattan- based thing, I cannot call every

         19  time I have to run to a meeting or have a problem.

         20  I am not going to be able to call, if I am running 5

         21  minutes late to come home in the evening to make

         22  sure there is a bus available.  If I have to be in

         23  early in the morning because I got a beep at 5 a.m.

         24  That says, you know, be on the first ferry shuttle,

         25  I need to know that there is an accessible route.
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          2  We asked them in that meeting, "Would you please,

          3  when you get your next set of buses, can you

          4  designate one route, let's say the 42nd Street fixed

          5  route, since that is the largest and most accessible

          6  to have every bus on that particular route as

          7  accessible?  They said, no, they would spread the

          8  accessible buses out in and around Manhattan and

          9  that they would try to use some kind of a radio

         10  system to get you service. That is totally

         11  unacceptable, we can go on from there.

         12                 But, safety and training of the

         13  crews, I totally agree that the crew must be trained

         14  in safety, however, they also need to be able to

         15  know where are the life jackets, how to help someone

         16  put on a life jacket, and there should be a life

         17  jacket assigned for service animals, they are

         18  inexpensive and it should be on every single ferry.

         19                 And the non- compliance issue, the

         20  non- compliance from the Human Rights Commission,

         21  also needs to include, "any land based

         22  transportation problems run in conjunction with any

         23  waterborne transportation".

         24                 Thank you very much for your time.

         25                 DR. ZAMES:  I am going to let Jean go
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          2  first.

          3                 MS. RYAN:  Hello my name is Jean

          4  Ryan, and I am from Disabled in Action.

          5                 Our organization pushes for all forms

          6  of accessible transportation.  I live in Bay Ridge,

          7  Brooklyn, and I would have taken a ferry over here

          8  today, but it was 15 degrees this morning. That is

          9  way too cold to ride the ferry outside in the open,

         10  which is what I would have had to do because the

         11  ferry is not accessible to people who use

         12  wheelchairs.  I can only get on the outside part of

         13  the ferry, not inside.  It is freezing cold out

         14  there.

         15                 Let me backtrack a bit.  On July 12,

         16  2002, I tried the ferry for the first time.  I

         17  easily went Shore Road by myself, in Brooklyn, and

         18  caught the wheelchair accessible bus, they do

         19  actually have wheelchair accessible buses to the

         20  ferry in Brooklyn, and I caught it to the ferry pier

         21  on 58th Street in Sunset Park, Brooklyn.  The pier

         22  was flat and accessible, but there was a steep ramp

         23  with cross- slats to get to the ferry.  My

         24  wheelchair would not budge on it.  My wheels were

         25  spinning.  A worker had to push me up the ramp.  A
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          2  second ramp to the boat was also impossible to do

          3  myself because the ramp into the boat was too steep

          4  and it had a lip on it, a little ledge going down,

          5  like a little step.  Finally I had made it onto the

          6  boat, the Royal Sunshine.

          7                 I went around the entire boat looking

          8  for a way to get inside, assuming that there must be

          9  one accessible door, never dreaming that I would

         10  have to ride on the outside, but I did because the

         11  doors all had 5- inch boards across the bottom that

         12  I could not hurdle over in my chair.

         13                 I wanted to use the rest room, but

         14  that was impossible to get to because of a door with

         15  a board across it, because the rest room door was

         16  too narrow, and because the rest room doorway was up

         17  off the floor, at least four inches.

         18                 Twenty minutes later, after

         19  experiencing the majesty of the harbor, the bridges,

         20  and the City, we arrived at Slip "C" at Wall Street.

         21    There was a big drop to the float, maybe 6 or 8

         22  inches.  There was not adequate space to turn

         23  perpendicularly to the boat and exit.  The crew

         24  wanted me to just roll off the boat, roll over that

         25  space, but I refused because I would have crashed
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          2  with my wheelchair onto the float below and injured

          3  myself.  I did not want to get injured.  I asked if

          4  they had a ramp.  They carried one over that was

          5  very bulky and had handrails, but it was made for

          6  ambulatory people who could walk off the boat, like,

          7  what we saw before in the photos.  It was too

          8  narrow.  Then, the crew again wanted me to try

          9  rolling off the boat, but again I refused.  The

         10  captain saw my plight and ordered the men to lift me

         11  off the boat with my wheelchair.  That is so risky

         12  to me, my chair, and the men. If one would have

         13  slipped, we all would have gotten hurt, and some

         14  chairs are just too heavy or bulky to lift.

         15  Luckily, I got safely down.

         16                 We need ferries to get places fast

         17  and bypass traffic.  We cannot use ferries unless

         18  they are accessible.  Please support the Accessible

         19  Ferries Law so people with mobility disabilities can

         20  have independent and safe access to the terminals,

         21  buses, piers, floats, and boats.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 DR. ZAMES:  I am Dr. Frieda Zames.  I

         24  am an officer of Disabled in Action of Metropolitan

         25  New York (DIA), the Center for Independence of the
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          2  Disabled in New York (CIDNY), and the New York State

          3  Independent Living Council (NYSILC).  I want make

          4  four major points:

          5                 First, the City consistently ignored

          6  the federal laws that require ferry accessibility.

          7                 Second, the disability community and

          8  their lawyers were continually alerting City

          9  government of the disability community's interest

         10  and need for accessible ferry services;           Third

         11  , the absolute need for City law, Intro. 261, the

         12  Accessible Passenger Ferry Service Transportation

         13  Act (APFSTA), and specifying the requirements for

         14  accessibility in ferry services according to the

         15  ADA.

         16                 And finally, the necessity for safety

         17  equipment and training for disabled ferry riders,

         18  especially wheelchair users, in case of an

         19  emergency.

         20                 First, ferry piers, terminals,

         21  floating docks were planned, designed and built

         22  under New York City government authority.  The ferry

         23  boats, buses and vans used by New York Waterway and

         24  other private ferry operators were designed and

         25  built after Section 504 and the Americans with
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          2  Disabilities Acts were passed.  The City and

          3  privates received federal funds to build and expand

          4  ferry services, to increase transportation

          5  alternatives, and to improve City air quality.

          6  After 9/11, the subsidies continued and FEMA money

          7  greatly expanded ferry services.  Although the City

          8  has the money, the technology, and the vision to

          9  revive waterborne public accessible transportation,

         10  it lacks the will.

         11                 Second, the disability community was

         12  excited by the prospect of accessible ferry service.

         13    We sent letters, made phone calls, brought the

         14  issue up at public disability transportation

         15  meetings, and even held demonstrations.  Subways,

         16  the fastest way of getting from borough to borough

         17  are not yet viable for people with disabilities, and

         18  only 100 subway stations out of 467 may be

         19  accessible by 2020.  This does not even consider the

         20  gap problem, and the fact that elevators are not

         21  reliable.  Access- A- Ride, as we all know, is a

         22  disaster.

         23                 At a demonstration, I asked a City

         24  official why the City does not require the ferries

         25  to be accessible, this was the Giuliani
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          2  Administration.  His answer was that it is in the

          3  contract and that is the end of their

          4  responsibility.

          5                 Why were we ignored, overlooked by

          6  the Giuliani Administration?  Well, we all know why.

          7    I am leaving a lot out because I am trying to

          8  stick to the 3 minutes, but it is in the testimony.

          9                 Three, why do we need this law?

         10  Since I tried getting on commuter ferries, I wrote

         11  1996, but now I learned it is 1995 to 2002, nothing

         12  has changed on the docks or on the ferries. In my

         13  almost 70 years as a person with a disability, I am

         14  more certain that laws are absolutely necessary, if

         15  we are to achieve our equal place in society.  That

         16  is why DIA strongly supports the "Accessible Ferry

         17  Passenger Services Transportation Act," Intro. 261.

         18  DIA vows to work with the Chairs of the Disability

         19  and Transportation Committees and the Council for

         20  its swift passage.

         21                 Four, a final note on the safety

         22  measures in this bill, specifically, the requirement

         23  for both evacuation chairs, such as the evac- u-

         24  chair, and staff training on every ferry.  To

         25  underscore this need, I wish to read into the record
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          2  a passage from 6/12/2002 New York Times article.  A

          3  fire occurred during November 2000, as a New York

          4  Waterway ferry traveled from the West 38th Street

          5  pier to the Weehawken, New Jersey pier.  The news

          6  article reported the following finding of the

          7  National Transportation Board (NTSB), I think it is

          8  the National Transportation Safety Board.

          9                 A major disaster was avoided only

         10  because 11 passengers were on board, resulting in

         11  only 3 sustaining minor injuries.

         12                 The Coast Guard permitted New York

         13  Waterway to skip all safety announcements because

         14  the trip was under 15 minutes.

         15                 The Company was not required to

         16  conduct preventative maintenance on the ferry, so

         17  such maintenance was never done.

         18                 The vessel's wiring was never

         19  inspected.

         20                 The crew never received safety and

         21  fire fighting training.

         22                 Ferries had no backup power, supply,

         23  or radio system.

         24                 Life preservers for adults and

         25  children were mixed together, and located near the
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          2  unmanned engine room.  The engine room lacked a fire

          3  detector.

          4                 The Captain and two deck hands failed

          5  to shut down the fuel flow and cut ventilation,

          6  adding to the fire's combustion. The Captain and two

          7  deck hands failed to check the engine room for heat

          8  before opening that door. The Captain and crew

          9  failed to close the door, allowing the fire to

         10  spread quickly.

         11                 No emergency land communication

         12  device was on board. A passenger's cell phone was

         13  used to call for help.  Passengers and crew were

         14  rescued moments before the ferry was engulfed in

         15  flames.

         16                 Now let's work to get this bill

         17  passed in Council and signed by the Mayor.  One day

         18  soon we shall ride together on the ferries, on the

         19  buses, and on the vans.

         20  I just want to say, especially to Margarita, we

         21  thank her, we are grateful for all you have done for

         22  us, and it is a different world since we have this

         23  Committee.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you.

         25  Sidney.
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          2                 MR. EMERMAN:  My name is Sidney

          3  Emerman, also from Disabled in Action.

          4                 Anne and I are married 32 years.  For

          5  the first six years of our marriage, traveling

          6  outside our home, I pushed her manual wheelchair

          7  while talking to the back of her head.  We

          8  encountered barriers everywhere; sidewalk curbs,

          9  steps to restaurants, theaters, our daughter's

         10  schools, and a transportation system on which we

         11  could not all travel together.

         12                 Anne's acquiring of a motorized chair

         13  was liberating for both of us.  It allowed us to

         14  travel side by side, and relate to each other as

         15  other couples do.  We have been fighting for a city

         16  environment without barriers for the past three

         17  decades, one that accommodates us as equal partners.

         18                 Significant changes have taken place.

         19    We now travel side by side on the City's lift-

         20  equipped buses, and on City streets using pedestrian

         21  ramps, otherwise known as curb cuts, also more

         22  restaurants and theaters have ramps.  But at most of

         23  the ferry slips we visited last summer, barriers

         24  large and small required me, and others to assist

         25  Anne and our friend Frieda every step along our
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          2  path, as the video and PowerPoint showed.  At age

          3  73, I am not getting younger, as willing as I am, I

          4  would rather not do unnecessary lifting.  More

          5  importantly, I rejoice when in public places and on

          6  all forms of transportation, barriers are removed

          7  and folks in wheelchairs can move independently,

          8  safely and with dignity.

          9                 I am looking forward to the time,

         10  perhaps this spring and summer, when Anne and I,

         11  with friends, can travel the ferries to Brooklyn,

         12  Queens, and New Jersey.  To that good end, I urge

         13  passage of Intro. 261.

         14                 And I would just add,

         15  parenthetically,  I love the water and I recall, as

         16  a kid in Hudson County, New Jersey, coming to

         17  Weehawken Ferry and riding that ferry many times to

         18  New York City.  I hated the shopping that my mother

         19  dragged me to, but I loved the water, I loved those

         20  ferries, and I will love these new ferries.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you.  Any

         22  member of the Committee have any question at this

         23  point?  Chairman Liu?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Do you think that

         25  the main requirements of this Intro. Are already
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          2  required under The Americans with Disabilities Act?

          3                 MS. LA ROCHE:  Technically not

          4  because the ADA did not envision waterborne

          5  transportation, as in the Air Carrier Act, there is

          6  a separate Act for airplane passage for people with

          7  disabilities.  Airplane passage is not covered under

          8  the ADA.  It does mirror the ADA, so in this new

          9  form of transportation, I think that this is

         10  necessary in order for safety regulations and non

         11  discriminatory regulations.

         12                 DR. ZAMES:  I would like to answer

         13  that also.  The ADA is broad, it does not, it says

         14  you cannot discriminate and things should be

         15  accessible but there are no specific regulations;

         16  there will be, but it is going to take the federal

         17  government a long time and as Margarita has said, by

         18  that time we could have loads of ferries that are

         19  inaccessible. Loads of docks that are inaccessible,

         20  and then they will have to retro- fit them, and it

         21  will cost a lot of money and they won't want to do

         22  it and it will take years to do.

         23                 We need this law because it is very

         24  specific.  It tells the people who are building it

         25  exactly what to do and that is what they need
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          2  because if you do not tell them exactly, they do it

          3  wrong.  And even when you tell them exactly, they do

          4  it wrong but at least it is better.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So this Intro.

          6  Would clarify the way in which accessibility can be

          7  delivered for ferries.  But the ADA does not exclude

          8  ferries from it, it just does not specifically

          9  mention ferries.

         10                 MS. LA ROCHE:  That is why I brought

         11  up the spirit

         12  of --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  But still the

         14  spirit of the ADA is to encompass everything in

         15  everyday life.  Is that correct?

         16                 MR. EMERMAN:  And the way the --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So there is no

         18  exclusion for ferries in ADA.

         19                 MS. RYAN: Yes, and the ADA specifies

         20  independent access as much as humanly possible, and

         21  it specifies in there that people should not be

         22  carried.  That is not the way to get people from one

         23  place to another with disabilities.  It is only for

         24  emergency situations, and not daily situations that

         25  you would want to be carried.  It is not dignified
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          2  and it is not safe, and we want to be independent.

          3  No one wants to be helped onto anything, if they can

          4  do it themselves.

          5                 DR. ZAMES:  And the ADA also has a

          6  whole section on transportation, ferries are

          7  transportation, so the obviously fit into the ADA.

          8                 MS. LA ROCHE:  But we have been

          9  before you on taxi issues, on bus issues, on subway

         10  issues, yes, railway is covered under the ADA, yet

         11  we fight the MTA at every single pass.  Why? Because

         12  it is expensive and it is retrofitted.  Alright, so

         13  although it is, the ADA is very broad in it's

         14  interpretation, unless you hold their feet to the

         15  fire and say, you are going to comply to this, or

         16  you are not going to be able to use City- based land

         17  for these terminals and things, they are not going

         18  to hold to it.  When we went, we had a very large

         19  meeting with the New York Waterways, and the EPVA

         20  was there and represented us, as they are our legal

         21  counsel, and essentially they danced around this

         22  whole thing and said, we have changed our attitude.

         23  The EPVA has been after them since the induction of

         24  the ADA, and even before that about their bus

         25  service.  All right, so they have not gotten
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          2  anywhere.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thanks a lot.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Gale.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  First it is

          6  nice to see Sidney Emerman testifying, that was one

          7  of my favorite testimonies over all these years.

          8                 My question is this, I could not

          9  agree with you more in terms of what you are doing,

         10  and I know you and Jim Weisman and working together

         11  for many years, my question is, are there other

         12  places in the country, perhaps in the west, or where

         13  ferries are used, or maybe other parts of the world,

         14  where the dock and the gangplank, - -   In my case,

         15  I am nervous about the Park, in other words, it is

         16  hard for anybody to get to some of these ferries,

         17  because you have sometimes a land mass between you

         18  and the bus and the subway and the ferry.  Not

         19  everybody can get to the waterways bus that then

         20  goes to the ferry even, because sometimes they are

         21  going to be up and down the Boroughs of Manhattan

         22  and Brooklyn.  So I just wanted to know if there are

         23  other places in the country where it is being done

         24  successfully, if anywhere?

         25                 DR. ZAMES:  As far as I know, I am on
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          2  the Board of the New York State Independent Living

          3  Council, in fact, I am the Transportation Committee

          4  Chair, and when I mention ferries, they were very

          5  excited about this, the possibility of this law,

          6  because they said they have the same problem to the

          7  St. Lawrence Waterway, you know the upstate New

          8  York.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thousand

         10  Islands.

         11                 DR. ZAMES:  Yeah, so, I do no think

         12  anywhere else that I know of has anything like this.

         13                 MR. EMERMAN:  New York would be

         14  leading the way.

         15                 MS. LA ROCHE:  Yet there are places

         16  where they are accessible, but they were not

         17  mandated by law, the companies decided to adhere to

         18  the spirit of the law.  There are plenty of ferries

         19  in the country, and the EPVA has the list where

         20  people can navigate the vessels, and the piers, and

         21  the land- based buildings, the facilities around

         22  them fully and independently.  AlL right, so the

         23  technology exists, it is out there, it is not

         24  regulated the way we would like.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I know the
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          2  ferry between the San Francisco, and across the bay

          3  there, is in fact accessible as an example.

          4                 DR. ZAMES:  Well, we have the Staten

          5  Island Ferry which we can use, so, we have a system

          6  in New York.  I mean, it is not the greatest, but it

          7  works.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  At this point, I

         10  would like the Council members who just arrived to

         11  introduce themself please.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I am Helen

         13  Sears from Queens.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  I am from

         16  the 24th District in Queens, my name is Jim Gennaro.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I would like to

         18  ask you a couple of questions.  To begin with,

         19  Sidney, can you explain to me what you go through

         20  when you have to pull up your wife and the

         21  wheelchair, and it is a friend with her, in order to

         22  get into these ferries?  What happened at the time

         23  that you were doing this?

         24                 MR. EMERMAN:  What do you mean?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  When, can you
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          2  describe what you went through, it is important for

          3  the Council members to hear what you go through

          4  every time that you have to try to bring up your

          5  wife in the wheelchair inside of the boat, or get

          6  her out.  How do you manage to do that?  And, what

          7  at the end of the day happen?

          8                 MR. EMERMAN:  Well, specifically,

          9  there are tipping levers on the back of most

         10  wheelchairs, and one has to hold the handlebars

         11  firmly, and press firmly with one's foot, and get

         12  the front of the chair up, and if it is one step and

         13  a platform beyond, that is not so bad.  If it is a

         14  barrier like Jean was describing, in some of the

         15  ferries from Brooklyn to Manhattan, where it is just

         16  a 6- foot entry to a doorway, you can up and you are

         17  stuck, you cannot go beyond without dumping the

         18  person out frontways.  Which is why Jean had to ride

         19  the outside one time, and Anne did too, and it is

         20  why she did not come today by ferry, where she would

         21  stuck on the outside in the freezing weather.

         22                 As far as at the end of the day, I do

         23  not think there was any particular day that my back

         24  went out as a result, but that is always a

         25  possibility.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Okay, I want to

          3  ask the Committee in general, do you know the

          4  history of when do you begin fighting this issue,

          5  what year that begin?  And, if you had tried in an

          6  affirmative way, a positive way, to negotiate this

          7  issue, and make this issue be accessible to you

          8  without having to go through a legal procedure, or

          9  without having to go through lawsuits, or without

         10  having to go through putting a piece of legislation,

         11  had you tried to negotiate this, and where you had

         12  gone with the negotiation process?

         13                 DR. ZAMES:  Well, I cannot say we

         14  tried to negotiate, but I know we tried to get on

         15  ferries in 1995, right at the beginning, and we saw

         16  there was a problem, and we called John Gresham,

         17  because I did not know who to talk to, you know, I

         18  did not know anything about ferries, this was a

         19  whole new issue for me. But I realized that this was

         20  something that could be very valuable for us, and so

         21  I called John Gresham and I said, let's start, we

         22  have got to do something about this, and the first

         23  thing we did was to try out ferries, and docks and

         24  see what was possible.  So that was my, the

         25  beginning for me, and for Disable in Action.
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          2                 I think Anne started in '94, and she

          3  was in DIA.  I always say though when Anne's not

          4  working for the City, she's an activist in Disabled

          5  in Action.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  But my question

          7  to you as a community, had your been involved in

          8  trying to resolve this issue as a community, and

          9  bring a resolution to the problem we now have in a

         10  piece of legislation?

         11                 DR. ZAMES:  What we did at the

         12  beginning was meet with, I cannot say we did that, I

         13  talked to John Gresham, who talked to Jim Weisman,

         14  and that was, and they were dealing with it. We

         15  would have been happy if they, I do not know if they

         16  were willing to do that.  As far as we knew, at that

         17  time, what existed was New York Waterway, and Jim

         18  was dealing with them.

         19                 MS. LA ROCHE:  When I was looking

         20  forward to going back to work, and we realized that

         21  the situation was not going to work, we as a

         22  community got together and had a meeting on

         23  September 6th with, of this year, September 6th of

         24  2002, which is in my testimony, I have all the notes

         25  from that meeting, and I can tell you everyone who
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          2  was there.  New York Waterways, it was held at their

          3  pier at West 38th Street, New York Waterways

          4  Director was there, Peter Johansen, their busing

          5  manager and two other people from their, we had

          6  representatives from the City, do you remember from

          7  the City what agency they were with?

          8                 MR. WOOD:  Economic Development

          9  Corporation.

         10                 MS. LA ROCHE:  The Economic

         11  Development Corporation, DOT was there, we had a

         12  representative from Virginia Fields office,

         13  Alexander, myself, Marvin Wasserman, and Jim Weisman

         14  from EPVA. They told us that they had a fundamental

         15  change in philosophy recently, and that post- 9/11

         16  the reason that some of the boats were so bad was

         17  because, A) The City told them that they must expand

         18  their service, and they pulled into service boats

         19  that were converted over from fishing vessels, and,

         20  right, the side- loaders, so they blamed it on the

         21  City, and that the City told them that they had to

         22  come up with a plan.  We mentioned the fact that

         23  they were getting FEMA money, and that they were

         24  being subsidized over $2,500 a month per passenger,

         25  new passenger they picked up, and they skirted the
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          2  issue and did not answer it.

          3                 We asked them about buses, and they

          4  said they had the one, and they bought it because of

          5  the contract they had with Yankee Stadium and the

          6  Yankee Clipper.  All right, because they Yankee

          7  contract specified that the bus shuttle service they

          8  ran must be accessible.  All right, and that is why

          9  it would not be available every day for an everyday

         10  commuter.  All right, this impacted me personally.

         11  I could not go back to my job because I could not go

         12  back and forth.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I understand

         14  that, I just need to understand if you have been

         15  dealing with the issue with elected officials, or

         16  with the City, or with the owners of the system.

         17                 MS. LA ROCHE:  All of the above.

         18  They told us when they thought they would have more

         19  vessels, they told us that the City was driving

         20  this, and that they could not meet demand

         21  production, and that they had contacted every boat

         22  manufacturer, and that their boats that they have

         23  built for them are, in fact, accessible.  But is was

         24  because the pressure the City put on them to expand

         25  service, post- 9/11, and that the other ferry
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          2  services that were brought in, that are not New York

          3  Waterways did not have the same measurements at the

          4  pier level.  So that when they pulled into a slip

          5  that was not built by them or specified by them, you

          6  did not get the match up.  All right, so they saw

          7  that the City had a lack of uniformity and

          8  standards, all right, similar to what happened in

          9  the subways when, at one time, you had different

         10  companies building different rails.  All right, so

         11  they identified the fact that a lack of uniformity

         12  was going to make this problem worse as it expanded.

         13                 So that is why we feel this

         14  legislation is so important because New York

         15  Waterways, the largest carrier, is saying that they

         16  have a problem because of the other vendors not

         17  complying to all the same standards and building

         18  standards.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you.

         20  Alexander.

         21                 MR.WOOD:  I cannot say that we were

         22  working with elected officials, I think that the

         23  work has been pretty recent, but other people who

         24  come up later on different panels, may have

         25  different stories.  I just, the group of us up here,
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          2  when I was a "Big Apple Greeter", I started in 1993,

          3  I remember and what I was doing was welcoming or

          4  promoting New York City as an accessible travel

          5  destination for travelers with disabilities, and

          6  some of those come from the tri- state area.  So I

          7  remember checking out, or going personally to meet

          8  wheelchair using visitor who arrived from Weehawken

          9  on the Port Imperial Ferry over at the Vesey Street

         10  slip by the World Financial Center, and that pier is

         11  still there, and we saw pictures of it over here.

         12                 And at that point, even though

         13  Waterways was running shuttles, we had to, I had to

         14  arrange for these visitors Access- A Ride to come

         15  pick us up, and then take these visitors from New

         16  Jersey with me up to Times Square, where we were

         17  doing with the Times Square Business Improvement

         18  District, accessible tours of Times Square, and it

         19  was so embarrassing to be on Access- A- Ride, you

         20  know, kind of doing this star pattern all over the

         21  City instead of a direct route.

         22                 But anyway, it did kind of work out,

         23  and it is just really clear that the ferry system

         24  does not work without the shuttle bus system in

         25  place also.  And so they are working to make that
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          2  more accessible now, and it is about time, because

          3  it has been, I mean, we have noticed, even if we did

          4  not work effectively to advocate for accessible bus

          5  service, as soon as we noticed it, we have been

          6  looking for 8 years, we noticed a long time ago, and

          7  that was clearly one link that was missing that

          8  needs to be retrofitted.

          9                 DR. ZAMES:  I just want to say, we

         10  did try to work with the City.  As you know, it was

         11  very difficult under the Giuliani administration,

         12  MOPD was not very effective.  We really did not know

         13  where to go, we tried.  But it was very hard to get,

         14  during that Administration there was very, very

         15  little interest in disability issues.

         16                 Yeah, and we, every time we were at

         17  the City, CCC, it is called, the Compliance

         18  Committee for the ADA, we would bring up ferries,

         19  and we would try to reach OLMSTED, and we would ask

         20  could there be a report on ferries, and sometimes

         21  they would say, one time they said they would invite

         22  them, and then they said, no, because it is not

         23  really part of the ADA, you know, it is a City

         24  issue, it is DOT.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  My last question,
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          2  Alexander, you testified that you filed a complaint

          3  with the Human Rights Commission about not being

          4  accepted in one of the ferry services on Pier 11.

          5  In base of what you file your complaint?

          6                 MR. WOOD:  What happened was, there

          7  were a group of us down there checking out

          8  accessibility, we were demanding accessible service,

          9  we saw a ferry coming into the accessible slip at

         10  Pier C, or Slip C at Pier 11 on September 12th, and

         11  the ferry kept wheeling around in the water, and

         12  going to another slip, they saw that there were like

         13  7 wheelchair users who were asking to be picked up

         14  on the pier, and they were like, we are not landing,

         15  we are not going to deal with this, and they would

         16  spin around on their wheels, or whatever, their

         17  propellers and go to another slip.           So then

         18  we had the clever idea, because we were close, and

         19  it is easy to do, Pier 11 is right at Wall Street.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Just stop.  You

         21  were not picked up?

         22                 MR. WOOD:  We were not picked up.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  You tried to be

         24  picked up?

         25                 MR. WOOD:  Repeatedly, like three
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          2  times.  We were at one slip, we saw the boat turn,

          3  and go towards another slip, we went over there, our

          4  service was denied, they did not come and land at

          5  that slip either.  We went, they looked like they

          6  were going to go dock at the original slip again, we

          7  went back there, and they ended up never landing.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  And they never

          9  picked you up there?

         10                 MR. WOOD:  They never picked us up.

         11                 DR. ZAMES:  And actually they did

         12  land, and pick up non- disabled people, a few non-

         13  disabled passengers.  They closed the gate

         14  immediately, and sailed away, at one point.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  And left you

         16  behind.

         17                 DR. ZAMES:  And, left, and would not,

         18  and there many more than 7 people in wheelchairs.

         19  There were about 17.

         20                 MR. WOOD:  Because 17 of us filed the

         21  complaint, and the good thing about the

         22  location......

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Then the reason

         24  you filed the complaint was because you were not

         25  granted access to the ferry service that you were
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          2  trying to get in?

          3                 MR. WOOD:  Right.

          4                 DR. ZAMES:  Exactly.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you.  Thank

          6  you very much.

          7  Any other question from the Committee members?  No.

          8  Thank you very much for your testimony, and I

          9  appreciate you taking the day to come out here.

         10  Particularly when it is so cold and I know that some

         11  of you, the weather affect your body sometimes.

         12  Thank you.

         13                 MS. BOLANOS:  Our next witness is Mr.

         14  Matthew Sapolin from the Mayor's Office for People

         15  with Disabilities.  Good afternoon.

         16                 MR. SAPOLIN:  Good afternoon.

         17                 MS. BOLANOS:  Please raise your right

         18  hand?  Do you swear that the testimony you are about

         19  to provide before this Committee is the whole truth,

         20  and that you will answer Council members' questions

         21  truthfully?

         22                 MR. SAPOLIN:  Yes, I do.

         23                 MS. BOLANOS:  Thank you.  And state

         24  your name and organization before you begin your

         25  testimony.
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          2                 MR. SAPOLIN:  My name is Matthew

          3  Sapolin, I am the Executive Director of the Mayor's

          4  Office for People with Disabilities.

          5                 Good afternoon.  Thanks for this

          6  opportunity again, and good to see some of you

          7  again, as I saw some of you in December.  Good

          8  afternoon Chairwomen Lopez and Chairman Liu, and

          9  members of the Committee.

         10                 My name is Matthew Sapolin, and I am

         11  the Executive Director of the Mayor's Office for

         12  People with Disabilities (MOPD). As I testified to

         13  before the Committee in December, on December 12th,

         14  the Mayor's Office for People with Disabilities

         15  serves as liaison between people with disabilities,

         16  and those agencies representing people with

         17  disabilities, and the City.  We work with other City

         18  agencies to make sure that the particular needs of

         19  people with disabilities are included and are

         20  considered in the development of plans, and

         21  procedures, and services to be delivered to the

         22  public.

         23                 Adequate, accessible transportation

         24  is an important link that enables people to access

         25  their community and crucial social, and health
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          2  services in the community.  Mayor Bloomberg

          3  recognizes that in order for people with

          4  disabilities to make their contribution to the

          5  economic and social fabric of this City, that they

          6  too, need access to these important transportation

          7  services.

          8                 The Mayor and various City agencies

          9  have taken steps to increase the level of

         10  accessibility in the transportation services that

         11  the City provides, and will looks to expand those

         12  efforts where possible.

         13                 I think it is important for the

         14  Committee and for the advocates from the community

         15  to recognize that we are committed to improving the

         16  transportation services that we provide, and will

         17  look to do that where we can, given the City's

         18  current fiscal reality.

         19                 The Department of Transportation and

         20  the Mayor's Office for People with Disabilities are

         21  dedicated to working collaboratively with all

         22  members of the community to ensure that we can

         23  develop strategies and plans to improve

         24  transportation services for al New Yorkers.  We

         25  think that more creative and real solutions can be
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          2  achieved through this kind of working relationship

          3  and dialog.

          4                 One recent example of the successful

          5  results of this kind of cooperation is the

          6  development of the Para Transit Advisory Committee,

          7  which was developed through the combined efforts of

          8  the Mayor's Office for People with Disabilities, the

          9  Para Transit Division of the MTA, and advocates from

         10  the community representing people with disabilities.

         11    MOPD will be involved with the selection of the

         12  members of that Committee, and in the spirit of this

         13  Administration's successful development of teams,

         14  will look to select nominees, who possess the track

         15  record and the experience of strong committee work.

         16                 It is expected that the Committee

         17  will work with the constituents it represents to

         18  bring matters and concerns of the community back to

         19  the Para Transit Division to be addressed.  The

         20  Committee will provide input to proposed change in

         21  service, and on policies and procedures.

         22                 We believe that this model, the model

         23  that this Committee was developed from and will work

         24  under, is an excellent model that could be used to

         25  also increase positive, real progress in the area of
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          2  transportation as a whole.

          3                 So I thank you for the opportunity to

          4  talk to you today, and testify here, and at this

          5  point I will answer any questions that you may have.

          6    Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you for

          8  coming to testify. My first question is what the

          9  position of the Administration on the bill that is

         10  in front of us, and for the purpose of this

         11  discussion?

         12                 MR. SAPOLIN:  Well, obviously, the

         13  Administration is in favor of access, and we will

         14  work carefully with Department of Transportation to

         15  explore ways of bringing access to the

         16  transportation system, and we will be studying your

         17  proposed legislation very carefully.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Then, at this

         19  point, you do not have any position in regard to the

         20  bill?

         21                 MR. SAPOLIN:  At this point, we are

         22  committed to working with DOT to increase levels of

         23  access.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Access where, in

         25  the vessels, in the piers, to eliminate the
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          2  barriers, what kind of access you talking about?

          3                 MR. SAPOLIN:  Well, I think at this

          4  point we are looking, as I stated, we are committed

          5  to examining transportation as a whole, as it is an

          6  integrated system, a comprehensive system that many

          7  different configurations of how it is utilized works

          8  for different people, so in that, we will be

          9  exploring increased levels of access in all of the

         10  areas of service.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Increased levels

         12  of access how? You going to eliminate the barriers

         13  that are in the pier that does not supposed to be

         14  there, that they does not supposed to be there to

         15  begin with, that is what you going to do?

         16                 MR. SAPOLIN:  Well, as MOPD I am not

         17  in the position to speak to the work plans that have

         18  been proposed, or that are in process.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  But you are in

         20  charge of letting the Mayor know that the law has

         21  been violated in the construction of these piers,

         22  and in the construction of all of these structures,

         23  and I just brought here a video tape that, it can be

         24  described to you, I understand that your disability

         25  does not let you see it, but the testimony that have
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          2  been provided here, and the movie that was put in

          3  place, show clear impossibilities for people with

          4  disability to have access to a boat, have access to

          5  a pier themself, get out from the boat to the pier,

          6  from the pier to the boat, the ramps that are in

          7  there, many of them were built in violation of the

          8  laws that command the construction of this pieces of

          9  equipment that are in - -

         10                 Then are you offices going to

         11  recommend to the Mayor to look into this, and to

         12  look into this to resolve it?

         13                 MR. SAPOLIN:  You know, obviously,

         14  the Administration is concerned with your comments

         15  and I will bring that back to the Administration and

         16  let them know of your concerns. And, you know

         17  unfortunately, I cannot discuss further with great

         18  detail some of the steps that the City have taken to

         19  address some of the issues you have just described.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  What is your

         21  review process to grant licenses for the ferries to

         22  operate on our piers?  Do you have a review process

         23  for that?

         24                 MR. SAPOLIN:  My office is not

         25  involved in that process.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Does the

          3  Department of Transportation have a review process

          4  for that?

          5                 MR. SAPOLIN:  I would suggest that

          6  you ask them about their review process for their

          7  operators.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Okay then, I will

          9  ask them, then the Administration will have to

         10  provide me with the testimony of the Department of

         11  Transportation, in order for me to ask that

         12  question, and it is my understanding right now, for

         13  the benefit of the public, that the Administration

         14  has not brought anybody else except you to testify,

         15  if I am not mistaken.  The Department of

         16  Transportation is not here, therefore, I cannot know

         17  what the Department of Transportation's regulations

         18  are unless they come to testify here.  In the next

         19  hearing we will have them here.  We will make sure

         20  that the Department of Transportation is sitting in

         21  here to answer this questions that you cannot

         22  answer.

         23                 I need to know, if the public is

         24  aware of all of these issues that are affecting the

         25  capacity to be able to have access to the vessels
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          2  and to the piers.  Do they have a system in which

          3  they can communicate this to your office?

          4                 MR. SAPOLIN:  Yes, if, obviously

          5  Chairwomen, anybody can reach out to my office and

          6  issue, you know, respond to us with any kind of

          7  complaint they have about a City service.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  What is the

          9  procedure?

         10                 MR. SAPOLIN:  Basically you can just

         11  call my office at 212- 788- 2830, and let us know

         12  about areas of issue, and we will deal with that

         13  information, and get it to the appropriate agencies.

         14  Also, I am sure, the other City agencies, while I do

         15  not have all of the contact numbers for complaints,

         16  also have mechanisms for lodging complaints.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Okay, I do not

         18  have no further question for the Commissioner.

         19                 MR. SAPOLIN:  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I have a question,

         21  a very quick question, and actually, Madam Chair

         22  Lopez asked it a couple of times.  I probably just

         23  missed what you said.  But, is the Administration in

         24  favor of this Intro. Or is it not?

         25                 MR. SAPOLIN:  I think Chairman, as I
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          2  stated, the Administration is in favor of access to

          3  transportation services, and in that regard is

          4  making every effort to explore ways of increasing

          5  the levels of access, in the entire system of

          6  transportation.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  That is great.  I

          8  actually do not know of a single person on this

          9  planet that who is not in favor of more access.

         10  There is clearly, what we are trying to do is figure

         11  out how to get to that point, that ideal point, and

         12  I think people are realistic enough to know that we

         13  are not going to get to any ideal point by tomorrow.

         14    But, the intent of this bill is to get us

         15  somewhere closer to that ideal point, so, is the

         16  Administration in favor of Intro. 261, as is

         17  currently written today, or does it not have a

         18  position on it?

         19                 MR. SAPOLIN:  You know, at this

         20  point, Chairman, I think as you have seen in the

         21  track record of this Administration, there already

         22  have been steps, publicly illustrated that increased

         23  access in other areas, and while we are not married

         24  to any one solution to increased levels of access,

         25  we will explore all ways of increasing levels of
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          2  access to all of the areas of the transportation

          3  system here in New York City.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Let me rephrase my

          5  question, because it is clearly not being answered,

          6  and perhaps you cannot answer it so, let me rephrase

          7  my question.  Does the Administration have a

          8  position on Intro. 261?

          9                 MR. SAPOLIN:  I cannot say any more

         10  than I have already said about our commitment to

         11  access.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  That is not

         13  acceptable testimony from the Administration.  When

         14  the Administration sends a representative to this

         15  Council, to a hearing on a proposed local law, we,

         16  at least, if you cannot tell us if you support it or

         17  not, simply say you have no position.  It has got to

         18  be, yes, we support it, no, we do not support it, or

         19  we do not, at this time, have a position.  How can

         20  it be anything else?  I am not saying that the

         21  Administration has not been supportive in trying to

         22  make all our transportation systems more accessible,

         23  nor am I saying that it has been.  But, right now,

         24  we are talking about Intro. 261.

         25                 Chairwomen Lopez, she has been a lady
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          2  about this, and she has asked you twice,

          3  specifically, and you did not answer so I figured,

          4  let me give it my best shot, and so far I am not

          5  successful either.  But to me, it has got to be,

          6  yes, you support it, no, I am sorry, yes, the

          7  Administration supports it, no, the Administration

          8  does not support it, or, at this time the

          9  Administration does not have a position on this

         10  bill.  Which is it?

         11                 MR. SAPOLIN:  At this point, I will

         12  say that I am not in a position to definitively say,

         13  except that we have not, we are not stating today

         14  our position on that bill.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Are you a

         16  Commissioner under this Administration?

         17                 MR. SAPOLIN:  I am the Executive

         18  Director of Mayor's Office for People with

         19  Disabilities, as I stated in my testimony.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I would suggest,

         21  with all due respect, that before you appear again

         22  at a hearing in this Council, I would respectfully

         23  request that you, at least, get a clear idea from

         24  the Administration that you work in, if the

         25  Administration is in favor, is against, or at this
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          2  time does not have a position.

          3                 MR. SAPOLIN:  Right, as I said, at

          4  this point, we are still reviewing the options, and

          5  we do not have a position.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Well, I do not

          7  think you said that before, now you have said it,

          8  thank you very much.

          9                 MS. BOLANOS:  Council Member Dilan.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  Yeah, I guess

         11  I will phrase my question as saying, as the

         12  Executive Director of your agency, is there any part

         13  of Intro. 261 that you may have issue with at this

         14  current time?

         15                 MR. SAPOLIN:  As I stated, our

         16  position is to review it, and come back to the

         17  Council with a position, at a later date.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  Okay, so at

         19  this time, as being the Executive Director of your

         20  agency and not a member of the "Administration", you

         21  have no position at this time on this Intro., is

         22  that correct?

         23                 MR. SAPOLIN:  I am not going to

         24  comment on that right now.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN:  Okay, thank
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          2  you.

          3                 MR. SAPOLIN:  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Helen?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you

          6  Madam Chair.  In light of, not confusion, but

          7  perhaps the inability to kind of unfold some more

          8  information, I was looking at the fact that you are

          9  forming a Citizen's Advisory Committee.  It would

         10  seem that if there is some doubts or complexities in

         11  this bill, that really need to be worked out, I

         12  would suggest that besides a Citizen's Advisory

         13  Committee, or the committee that you are forming,

         14  you also form a Technical Advisory Committee.

         15  Because when you are dealing with water, and you

         16  have currents, and you have Coast Guard regulations,

         17  and you have got the Army Corps of Engineers, it

         18  would seem that if you had two committees, that any

         19  of the questions that could be raised that would

         20  delay the moving along of access for those with

         21  disabilities on the waterways, would be expedited by

         22  having your Technical Committee be able to either

         23  research or clarify so that the process could move

         24  along.

         25                 The two together work very well, and
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          2  perhaps you will take back and that might be one of

          3  the things to have so that we could move along in

          4  having water access available to those with

          5  disabilities.  It works, believe me, it works.

          6                 MR. SAPOLIN:  Well, thank you for the

          7  suggestion and yes we do, while we address issues of

          8  access tend to separate the disciplines to the

          9  technical side, and the theoretical side, is as you

         10  astutely pointed out there are some technical.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  And do you

         12  have an advisory committee, a Technical Advisory

         13  Committee, aside from the agencies that are

         14  involved?

         15                 MR. SAPOLIN:  In this testimony, what

         16  I had stated was that we have done, we have created

         17  a model by which a committee was formed to address

         18  another transportation issue, but that we feel that

         19  that model similarly, including your suggestion of a

         20  technical scope would be a nice way to move forward

         21  to come up with a reasonable solution, more

         22  expeditiously.  So, I am hoping to move forward in

         23  that regard, and will take your recommendation into

         24  serious consideration.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Because it is
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          2  also important the frequency in which this committee

          3  meets, and that is important, there not in just in

          4  word only, but a Technical Committee has a lot to

          5  look at, it has a lot of work to do, and it has to

          6  meet frequently in order to resolve some of those

          7  problems that may develop, in developing this plan.

          8  So I think you need to take that back in terms of a

          9  timetable for dealing with the technical aspect of

         10  it.

         11                 MR. SAPOLIN:  Thank you.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you.

         13  Thank you Madam Chair.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Council member

         15  Foster.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FOSTER:  I just have a

         17  recommendation.  While your testimony was very nice

         18  in terms of introducing us to what that office does,

         19  in my opinion, and I am sure the two Chairs will

         20  agree, if we are going to have testimony from the

         21  Administration, it would be helpful if the testimony

         22  related to what we are talking about.

         23                 Here we are talking about

         24  specifically an Intro. With specific recommendations

         25  and your testimony did not talk to it all.  I
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          2  understand, and I agree with John Liu we all want

          3  accessibility, we all want world peace, but in terms

          4  of actually getting it, how do we get there?  And

          5  your being here has actually, in my opinion, kind of

          6  been a waste of time because you have provided us

          7  with nothing to go on other than what your office

          8  does, and what you do as Executive Director, which

          9  could be put in a brochure and handed out to us, and

         10  we could read on our own time, and then you could

         11  actually talk to this Intro.

         12                 So it would be helpful in the future,

         13  if called to testify in front of a Council Committee

         14  about a specific Intro. Or Resolution, that you as

         15  Executive Director for the Mayor's office speak to

         16  that Intro. Or Resolution.  Thank you.

         17                 MR. SAPOLIN:  Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Any other

         19  question?  Yes, Council Member Brewer.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I was stepped

         21  out for a minute, but I remember when Anne Emerman

         22  was head of this Office, and it is, and I was in the

         23  office adjoining her, so I remember the issues she

         24  had in terms of educating other members of the

         25  Administration.
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          2                 So my question is, I understand you

          3  do not have a position, to me that is

          4  understandable, but the question is, what are you

          5  doing internally, because this is an expensive

          6  issue, this is a complicated issue, and I know there

          7  will be some resistance, but I think that you owe

          8  us, in your office, in this particular case, have a

          9  dual role, at least that is what Anne Emerman did,

         10  which was to both be an advocate and at the same

         11  time be part of the Bloomberg team.  So what are you

         12  doing to be able to advocate each and every DOT, et

         13  cetera, and all the other agencies, perhaps stepping

         14  out of the envelope a little bit and doing the extra

         15  mile?

         16                 MR. SAPOLIN:  Well, that is a good

         17  question, as I said, we work closely with these

         18  other agencies to examine these issues, and look at

         19  them, and look for solutions.  As related to this

         20  issue, we have started the dialog and we are in the

         21  process of talking about the importance of this

         22  issue, and as you said, my role is to bring the

         23  voice of the community to those agencies, and let

         24  them know some of the issues related to the plans

         25  that the Administration takes in providing services
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          2                 I have spoken with the people I work

          3  closely with in the Administration, and given them

          4  the information about access to transportation

          5  services, and in my offices the responses we have

          6  gotten from the community, and the history of very

          7  similar to what you have heard from members of the

          8  community, as I am a person with a disability,

          9  living in the City, so I have experienced some of

         10  what has been said.

         11                 What we plan to do is continue that

         12  dialogue, come up with mechanisms by which to have

         13  effective communication, and work towards solutions

         14  that are, hopefully, win/win in the end, that

         15  provide a comprehensive, universal solution for

         16  everybody.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I need to stop

         18  you because you going around and around and around

         19  telling us things that at this moment, I think, is a

         20  little bit disrespectful to all of us, and let me

         21  tell you why.  You had not answered a single

         22  question in connection to this bill, it is simple,

         23  nothing in connection to this Bill.  This hearing is

         24  about the bill, the hearing is not about anything

         25  else, and if you have any contribution to make into
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          2  this hearing, that is pertaining to this particular

          3  bill, Intro. No. 261, it is sponsored by 41 Council

          4  members, 3 Borough Presidents, and the Public

          5  Advocate.

          6                 Do you have anything to tell us about

          7  this bill, in particular, in which the

          8  Administration have discussed with you, you

          9  discussed with the Administration, or with any

         10  dependency of the Administration?  Yes or no?

         11                 MR. SAPOLIN:  You have heard my

         12  testimony, Chairwomen, and that is what I came to

         13  say today.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Then you do not

         15  have nothing to say about this bill?

         16                 MR. SAPOLIN:  Other than what I have

         17  already said.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  You did not say

         19  nothing about the Bill.  You did not say nothing,

         20  you had say nothing about this Bill, therefore, you

         21  do not have nothing to say about this bill, correct?

         22                 MR SAPOLIN:  As I said, I presented

         23  my testimony Chairwomen.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I can ask a
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          2  follow- up when you are done.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Let me then just

          4  touch upon some of the points that you just gave us

          5  in your most recent response, within the last minute

          6  and a half.  You said that you want to continue the

          7  dialogue on this issue, I am assuming the issue

          8  would be access to ferries for people who use

          9  wheelchairs, because that is what we are talking

         10  about here.  Is that true or not true?  Is it true

         11  that you want to continue the dialogue on the issue

         12  of accessibility for wheelchairs users to ferries?

         13                 MR. SAPOLIN:  Accessibility to

         14  ferries, yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  For all?

         16  Accessibility of ferries to all?  Okay, do you wish

         17  to continue the dialogue on improving accessibility

         18  to ferries for people who use wheelchairs and

         19  scooters?

         20                 MR. SAPOLIN:  They are included in

         21  all, so yes. They include all, folks in wheelchairs,

         22  so are folks with hearing impairments, and yes,

         23  wheelchairs and scooters.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Mr. Executive

         25  Director have you in the past month had any kind of
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          2  dialogue concerning the accessibility of ferries to

          3  people who use wheelchairs, scooters, or other

          4  mobility assistance devises?

          5                 MR. SAPOLIN:  Yes, I have.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  With any, have

          7  these conversations taken place with any entities

          8  outside the Administration?

          9                 MR. SAPOLIN:  Yes.  Meaning people

         10  who have contacted me with this issue, is that your

         11  question, like constituents and such?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Sure, and what

         13  about any organizations, any advocacy groups?

         14                 MR. SAPOLIN:  I believe so, yes,

         15  generally yes. Without having a log of who contacted

         16  me with their input on this issue, I would say yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON:  Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I believe that we

         19  need to hear from the Department of Transportation

         20  on this issue.  I do not see any clarity or any

         21  light being shed over this issue, and about Intro.

         22  261 from your office, and I understand that you

         23  cannot make no further comments.  I suggest to the

         24  other Council members that we move to the next

         25  testimony.
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          2                 Council Member Brewer have the last

          3  question to ask, and I will say right now that we

          4  going to have another hearing, and in the hearing

          5  then, the Department of Transportation will be asked

          6  to come to speak on this issue, because it is the

          7  one who can give us clarity in what we want.  Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I am Gale

          9  Brewer, and the question is, just to follow- up, is

         10  it possible that you could, in the very near future,

         11  to set up some meetings internally with the agencies

         12  that might be responsible for this issue, having

         13  yourself, of course, brief them in advance, and

         14  meeting with some of the advocates or members to try

         15  to get this dialogue going, is that something that

         16  your office could do?

         17                 MR. SAPOLIN:  You have my commitment

         18  that I will take that request back to the

         19  Administration and do my best to make something

         20  happen in that regard.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, all

         22  right, thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  You should take

         24  the request, with the commitment that this Council

         25  intend to call another hearing to bring the
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          2  testimony of the Commissioner of Transportation

          3  here, which is relevant to the issues that we

          4  talking about, and in the next hearing that we going

          5  to have on this issue, that is what we going to do.

          6  Thank you.

          7                 MR. SAPOLIN:  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  The next

          9  testimony that we going to call for.

         10                 MS. BOLANOS:  Our next panel of

         11  witnesses we will hear from elected officials on

         12  their position on Intro. 261, Mr. Robert Gottheim

         13  from the Office of Congressman Nadler, Ms. Naumi

         14  Feldman, from the Office of the Manhattan Borough

         15  President, C. Virginia Fields, please come forward.

         16                 MS. BOLANOS:  Please raise your right

         17  hand?  Do you swear that the testimony you are about

         18  to provide to this Committee is the whole truth and

         19  that you will answer Council members' questions

         20  truthfully?

         21                 MS. FELDMAN:  Yes.

         22                 MR. GOTTHEIM:  I do.

         23                 MS. BOLANOS:  Please state your name

         24  and organization before you begin your testimony for

         25  the record and we will start with Mr. Gottheim,
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          2  thank you.

          3                 MR. GOTTHEIM:  Sure, my name is

          4  Robert Gottheim.  I am representing Congressman

          5  Jerrold Nadler, I am also going to be reading joint

          6  testimony today from both Senator Clinton and

          7  Congressman Nadler, they got together to write joint

          8  testimony.  I am sorry that the Congressman and the

          9  Senator could not be here today to testify.  It is

         10  very brief testimony, so I am just going to read it.

         11                  "New York City commuter ferries are

         12  a vital means for commuters and residents to travel

         13  between and access New York City's boroughs.  It is

         14  essential that elderly New Yorkers and those with

         15  disabilities are also able to utilize these ferries

         16  as a primary method of transportation.  Access to

         17  commuter ferries must be ensured by enforcing

         18  uniform standards that will allow elderly and

         19  disabled New Yorkers to safely embark, disembark,

         20  and ride these ferries.  Indeed, a person's ability

         21  to get to work, travel safely, and in general, carry

         22  out his or her daily activities rests on having a

         23  dependable means of transport.

         24                 In 1990, Congress enacted the

         25  Americans with Disabilities Act.  It has often been
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          2  described as the most sweeping, non- discrimination

          3  legislation since the Civil Rights Act of 1964.  It

          4  provides broad, non- discrimination protection in

          5  employment, public services, public accommodation,

          6  and services operated by private entities,

          7  transportation and telecommunications for

          8  individuals with disabilities.  As the Act clearly

          9  states, its purpose is to provide a clear, and

         10  comprehensive national mandate for the elimination

         11  of discrimination against individuals with

         12  disabilities.  It is entirely appropriate that New

         13  York City and the New York City Council seeks to

         14  enact legislation that furthers the mandate of ADA.

         15  Unfortunately, people with disabilities, attempting

         16  to travel by commuter ferry transportation are not

         17  assured that they access all the passenger piers,

         18  docks, and ferry boats.  New York City's ferries

         19  must take the necessary steps to make ferries a safe

         20  and consistently accessible to people with

         21  disabilities.

         22                 We commend you, and the members of

         23  the Committee on Mental Health, Mental Retardation,

         24  Alcoholism, Drug Abuse, and Disability Services for

         25  pursuing this issue, and working to improve the
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          2  lives of New York residents.  Today's hearing will

          3  go a long way toward examining these issues, and

          4  hopefully at arriving at solutions to the present

          5  problems.  As New York City and its residents become

          6  more dependent on ferries and transportation, the

          7  important service should be made accessible, safe,

          8  and available to all New York's elderly and disabled

          9  citizens."  Thank you.                       MS.

         10  FELDMAN:  Good afternoon Chairwomen Lopez, Chairman

         11  Liu, and members of the City Council.  My name is

         12  Naumi Feldman, and I am here to represent Manhattan

         13  Borough President, C. Virginia Fields.  I am her

         14  health policy analyst and I run her Disability

         15  Advisory Council.  The Borough President apologizes

         16  for not being able to attend this hearing, but she

         17  has asked me to testify in support of Intro. No. 261

         18  on her behalf.

         19                 Borough President Fields has been a

         20  strong advocate for ferry transportation as a means

         21  to improve connectivity throughout the City and

         22  protect our environment by providing needed

         23  alternatives to vehicle- based travel.  Ferries and

         24  water taxi service are essential to alleviating

         25  congestion on our subway lines and linking residents
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          2  and tourists to employment, recreation and cultural

          3  destinations.  Water- based transportation also

          4  provides vital transportation redundancy, as

          5  highlighted after the events of 9/11.  It is an

          6  expeditious means of increasing transportation in

          7  under- served areas, often serving as a catalyst for

          8  economic revitalization.

          9                 Given the vital service provided by

         10  ferries and water taxis, everyone should have access

         11  to them.  It has become increasingly apparent that

         12  the disabled community has not had the access they

         13  require and deserve.  Docks, terminals, landings,

         14  vessels, and connections to them have barriers which

         15  prevent or hinder the use of water- based

         16  transportation by the disable.  Too often, the

         17  multiple jurisdictions at the waterfront have

         18  impeded resolution of these access issues, and I

         19  included not just the private water operators, but

         20  the Department of Transportation, the Port Authority

         21  of New York and New Jersey, and the Economic

         22  Development Corporation.  One agency or body needs

         23  to have oversight to provide accountability and

         24  resources for ensuring full accessibility with

         25  existing and future services.

                                                            87

          1  MENTAL HEALTH AND TRANSPORTATION

          2                 The Borough President commends the

          3  Council for holding this hearing on Intro. 261 to

          4  help alleviate the obstacles at the waterfront that

          5  are faced by the disabled.  The proposed legislation

          6  clearly identifies the standards needed in ensure

          7  that ferry service is fully accessible to people

          8  with disabilities and that such service is provided

          9  in a safe manner.  This is important as the industry

         10  moves forward with developing its services to meet

         11  the growing demand of riders.

         12                 Among the issues that we may still

         13  need to address, however, is the financial ability

         14  of, in particular, smaller operators to meet these

         15  standards and continue to provide service since the

         16  operation of water transportation is not subsidized.

         17                 I understand that with the

         18  construction of new terminals, the City has been

         19  complying with the proposed guidelines developed by

         20  the federal government.  Operators have also made

         21  some strides with their new vessels and terminals.

         22  Nonetheless, much of our existing infrastructure

         23  needs to be modified to enable use by disabled

         24  residents and visitors.  In order to do this,

         25  resources will need to be expended to facilitate the
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          2  process.

          3                 Much work remains to be done, and

          4  many outstanding issues addressed.  The Borough

          5  President however, applauds the collaboration

          6  between the disabled community and water- based

          7  transportation operators in their efforts to

          8  identify problems and bring about resolution of

          9  them.  This kind of cooperation is imperative,

         10  particularly as this important industry continues to

         11  expand.  It is clear that we cannot support the

         12  continued maintenance and development of mass

         13  transportation systems that are not accessible to

         14  people with disabilities.  The Borough President

         15  believes that the water- based transportation

         16  industry truly wants to provide service to the

         17  disabled, however, she feels that legislation is key

         18  to ensure that accessibility standards are properly

         19  defined and applied in a timely manner.

         20                 Borough President Fields also

         21  commends the Council for their tremendous work on

         22  this issue to date, and knows that this is only the

         23  beginning of facilitating full access to all at our

         24  waterfronts and on our waterways.  The Borough

         25  President and her staff look forward to working with
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          2  the Council to ensure that people with disabilities

          3  are able to access this important form of

          4  transportation, and I would also like to add that

          5  the Manhattan Borough President is extremely proud

          6  to be a prime sponsor of this legislation, along

          7  with the members of the City Council.  Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you very

          9  much.  Any question from the members of the

         10  Committees?  No?  Yes. Go.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Yes, I appreciate

         12  the testimony on behalf of the Manhattan Borough

         13  President.  Just as a, just a simple question, has

         14  the Borough President come out with any type of

         15  financial projections for, because you state that

         16  the financial ability of some of the smaller

         17  operators may be at issue here, does her office come

         18  out with any projections if this Intro. Was enacted?

         19                 MS. FELDMAN:  At this point we have

         20  not.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  At this point,

         22  okay, thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  For the benefit

         24  of the Committee members, I am going to gave you any

         25  analysis that was made by the Independent Budget's
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          2  Office, in regard of what and how much this will

          3  cost, and I will make that accessible to you in the

          4  next couple of days.

          5                 MS. BOLANOS:  But it is here now.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Oh, we have it

          7  right here, I am sorry.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  And, I am sure our

          9  staff will give that to us also but I just did not

         10  have the benefit of it here today.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Okay, thank you.

         12  I just want to ask a question to the representative

         13  of Congressman Jerry Nadler and Senator Clinton, and

         14  I want to make a comment to Manhattan Borough

         15  President;  she is awesome, and that is the comment.

         16    Thank you.

         17                 MS. FELDMAN:  I thank you, and she

         18  thanks you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  For your support.

         20    In regard of the federal level finally addressing

         21  this issue, it has been 12 years, since they have

         22  been, allegedly, doing something about it, are we

         23  seeing the light soon in, at the end of the tunnel,

         24  or not?

         25                 MR. GOTTHEIM:  You know, in looking
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          2  at our research, and I can only speak for

          3  Congressman Nadler, I just wanted to also state that

          4  I am joined by Michael Caplice from Senator

          5  Clinton's office, so they are also here observing

          6  the hearing.  But I am just going to speak for

          7  Congressman Nadler, when we were researching the

          8  issue, and I know when we went out with you, and we

          9  actually, the day you did the video, I was actually

         10  with you, and then we had Congressional Research

         11  Service look at the issue for us, it was obvious

         12  that there was a lack of any federal regulations

         13  when it came to ferries, and what they did tell us

         14  is that they said local governments, such as the New

         15  York City Council can step in and make law, because

         16  the Americans with Disabilities Act states it, does

         17  not mean that that stops local governments from

         18  enacting their own legislation where the federal law

         19  stops.  So, it is certainly within the power of the

         20  City Council to clear up where there is this

         21  ambiguity.  So, whether the federal government is

         22  going to step in, we have not seen any, as you have

         23  said, it has been 12 years and they have not made

         24  any regulations in this vital area.

         25                 So, we applaud you for stepping in,
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          2  and maybe we can prod the federal government into

          3  doing something, but it has not happened in 12 years

          4  and that is a real tragedy.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Then they alleged

          6  statements that have been out there saying the

          7  federal government is going to come, the federal

          8  government is going to come and finally, is going to

          9  issue the final regulations on the issue of

         10  transportation in the marine system, is just a fairy

         11  tale, at this point.

         12                 MR. GOTTHEIM:  You know, we have not

         13  seen it yet, and it has been 12 long years and we

         14  should not have to wait any longer unless they are

         15  going to introduce it this year.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Is any sign out

         17  there, that in Congress and in the Senate, and I ask

         18  both of you because you are there and I am not, that

         19  indicate that this issue is going to be addressed

         20  finally, any signs?

         21                 MR. GOTTHEIM:  To my knowledge, I

         22  have not seen that, no.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  How about from

         24  the part of the Senator?  Okay, then.

         25                 MR. CAPLICE:  My name is Michael
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          2  Caplice from Senator Clinton's Office, and

          3  unfortunately, I do not have any information on that

          4  at this time.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Okay, I asked

          6  that question because some people have said that we

          7  do not need to legislate here because the federal

          8  government is finally going to come with some

          9  regulations, and that is the reason I asked both of

         10  you at the federal level if you had seen any action

         11  in that direction?

         12                 MR. GOTTHEIM:  As I said, we have

         13  not.  We keep hearing as you hear, that they are

         14  going to issue regulations, but they have not to

         15  date, and again, it is perfectly within the rights

         16  of the New York City and the Council to issue local

         17  laws, and where the federal Government does not, you

         18  know, the law does not state or does not say

         19  anything otherwise.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you very

         21  much.

         22                 MR. GOTTHEIM:  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I think that the

         25  answer may be clear to this question but I just
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          2  would like to hear it for the record.  I guess in

          3  the opinion of the Federal legislators, is there

          4  anything within Intro. 261 that would make it, where

          5  it would be preempted by Federal law?  Is it totally

          6  compliant, and I believe it is, but I would like to

          7  hear opinion from the federal government, is there

          8  any way that this could preempted say?

          9                 MR. GOTTHEIM:  Well, it could always

         10  be preempted, the federal regulations could always

         11  preempt it, but as of now, especially when the

         12  federal law is silent of it, local law would

         13  certainly take precedence, there is no federal law

         14  on it, there is silence.  Thank you.

         15                 MS. BOLANOS:  We will now receive

         16  testimony from the representative of Senator

         17  Clinton's office, Michael Caplice, thank you.

         18                 MR. CAPLICE:  Actually, Mr. Gottheim

         19  read our joint statement, so that is all our office

         20  has to say.  Thanks.

         21                 MS. BOLANOS:  Okay, thank you.  We

         22  will now receive testimony from representatives of

         23  the Ferry Industry Operators.

         24  Mr. Peter Johansen, Mr. Carter Craft, Mr. Tom Fox,

         25  and from the office of the New York City 2012
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          2  Olympics, Miss Erica Nelson, thank you.

          3                 Please raise your right hand, or your

          4  left hand if your right hand is inoperable,

          5  disabled?  Do you swear that the testimony you are

          6  about to give before this Committee is the whole

          7  truth and that you will answer Council member

          8  questions truthfully?

          9                 ALL:  Yes.

         10                 MS. BOLANOS:  Please state your name

         11  and organization for the record before you begin

         12  your testimony and we will start with Mr. Peter

         13  Johansen.

         14                 MR. JOHANSEN:  My name is Peter

         15  Johansen, and I work for New York Waterway.

         16                 Since New York Waterway began

         17  operation in 1986, private ferries have become an

         18  integral part of the renaissance of the New York and

         19  New Jersey waterfronts.  People who used to bring

         20  their cars into Manhattan now arrive on modern

         21  passenger ferries, leaving their cars and the

         22  resulting problems of pollution and congestion

         23  behind.  In 2002, New York Waterway transported more

         24  than 15 million passengers.  The importance of the

         25  ferry to this region became apparent to everyone on
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          2  September 11th, 2001, when the water became the only

          3  route of escape for hundreds of thousands of

          4  terrified people.  New York Waterway alone evacuated

          5  more than one hundred and sixty thousand people that

          6  day.

          7                 Along with the growth of New York

          8  Waterway from a small, family owned, one boat ferry

          9  operation to a major transportation provider comes a

         10  responsibility to make our system as accessible, or

         11  more so, than the other modes of public

         12  transportation.  Let me give you a quick outline of

         13  some of the steps that New York Waterway has

         14  undertaken to achieve that end.

         15                 New York Waterway has pioneered the

         16  use of bow loading ferries in passenger

         17  transportations.  With wide doors and the height of

         18  the vessel set to match the height of the dock, we

         19  have developed a system that has service our

         20  wheelchair customers for many years.  Today, of the

         21  thirty vessels that New York Waterway owns, all but

         22  four are fully accessible to the handicapped.

         23                 Last year, prior to the introduction

         24  of this legislation, New York Waterway began a

         25  dialogue with the advocacy groups of the handicapped
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          2  community to further improve the accessibility of

          3  our systems.  Engineers from the Eastern Paralyzed

          4  Veterans Association conducted site surveys of our

          5  facilities and made recommendations to correct

          6  deficiencies.  With the help of this report, we have

          7  made significant progress in making our system even

          8  more accessible.

          9                 As for our buses, the company has

         10  taken delivery of fifteen new buses equipped with

         11  wheelchair lifts.  A follow- up order for ten

         12  additional buses has been placed, and our fleet will

         13  be fully compliant with the ADA by the statutory

         14  deadline of October 2006.

         15                 A source of concern to the

         16  handicapped community has been the accessibility

         17  issue with some of the chartered side loading

         18  vessels currently supplementing our fleet to provide

         19  additional service to Lower Manhattan in the

         20  aftermath of 9/11.  As a consequence of 9/11, we

         21  were asked by New York City, FEMA, and the Port

         22  Authority to put additional boats in service to

         23  provide commuters with expanded access to Manhattan.

         24    Since few accessible bow- loading ferries were

         25  available for charter, we had to employ a variety of
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          2  boats including fishing boats, whale watchers and

          3  excursion boats, none of which were constructed as a

          4  passenger ferry.  While we have modified these

          5  vessels, somewhat, to increase their accessibility,

          6  there are some construction features that could only

          7  be changed through lengthy and costly renovation.

          8  Additionally, making some of the changes required by

          9  the proposed New York City law or the proposed

         10  federal law will require changes in the U.S. Coast

         11  Guard construction standards.  With the resumption

         12  of PATH service into Lower Manhattan by December

         13  2003, we expect the need for these charter vessels

         14  to diminish substantially.  We will also take

         15  delivery of an additional five bow- loading ferries

         16  in March 2003 that will allow us to replace more of

         17  these side- loading vessels with accessible bow-

         18  loading ferries.

         19                 As to the proposed legislation, Bill

         20  261, we believe that it contains major flaws and

         21  question whether it is necessary at all.  The Access

         22  Board, the federal agency in charge of implementing

         23  ADA regulations, has been working in establishing

         24  federal standards for ADA regulations on passenger

         25  vessels.  They have established the Passenger Vessel
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          2  Access Advisory Committee, which is made up of the

          3  Coast Guard, industry groups and advocacy groups

          4  that draft and implement accessibility regulations

          5  for vessels.  We support their efforts and have used

          6  their proposed regulations as the standard by which

          7  we have built our new vessels. The drafters of Bill

          8  261 have used these proposed regulations as the

          9  basis for the City law but have changed them in some

         10  key ways as follows:

         11                 The federal standards would apply to

         12  new construction and to vessels undergoing

         13  substantial modification. This is in line with the

         14  ADA philosophy.  The proposed City law will require

         15  all existing vessels to be rebuilt and would be a

         16  severe economic hardship to the boat owner.

         17                 The proposed City standards for

         18  vessel dimensions are more restrictive than those

         19  set forth in the proposed federal standards.  This

         20  would made new vessels built to the proposed federal

         21  standards, including those already operated by New

         22  York Waterway, illegal to operate in New York City.

         23                 By following the City standards, the

         24  vessel owner would be put in a position whereby in

         25  order to comply with the City law, it would have to
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          2  violate a federal regulation that could cause the

          3  Coast Guard to revoke their Certificate of

          4  Inspection, meaning the vessel could not carry

          5  passengers.

          6                 The proposed federal standards make

          7  allowances for different size vessels while the City

          8  law does not.

          9                 The legislation is too broad in

         10  scope.  Some of the parts of the Bill apply to all

         11  passenger vessels that service New York City.  This

         12  would include cruise ships, ferries, dinner and

         13  excursion boats, chartered fishing boats,

         14  recreational craft and water taxis.  If cruise ships

         15  are included, for example, the City will be

         16  legislating the construction of vessels built to

         17  international standards.

         18                 By extending the legislation to

         19  include "any point to which vessels travel outside

         20  the waters of New York City" this legislation

         21  attempts to impose City law upon other states and

         22  even foreign countries.

         23                 By imposing requirements for crew

         24  training and safety equipment, the law reaches into

         25  areas that the courts have ruled to be under the
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          2  federal jurisdiction of the U.S. Coast Guard.

          3                 Under this legislation, a ferry

          4  operator that owns buses would be given 180 days to

          5  equip all buses with wheelchair lifts.  This

          6  requirement is in clear conflict with the ADA

          7  timetable for bus accessibility.

          8                 In summary, it is our opinion that

          9  when compared to other modes of public

         10  transportation, the ferry industry in New York City

         11  is the most accessible mode of transportation.  As a

         12  company, New York Waterway has made a commitment to

         13  improve the accessibility of our terminals and

         14  vessels and has expended considerable resources to

         15  that end.  We believe that this legislation is not

         16  necessary, and is in a large measure preempted by

         17  federal law, and would impose standards on our

         18  industry that would seriously impair our ability to

         19  continue operations.

         20                 MR. CRAFT:  Good afternoon, my name

         21  if Carter Craft, I am Program Director of the

         22  Metropolitan Waterfront Alliance.            Thanks

         23  to the first hand experiences of the disabled

         24  community we have heard today, I will sort of

         25  dispense with the examples that we had last year,
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          2  whereas, either sponsors of events or participants

          3  of events, we literally had hundreds of instances of

          4  disabled people not having full access to vessels.

          5  One in particular was the "Face of America" bike

          6  tour which is in September and it is sponsored by a

          7  group called World Team Sports. We helped them

          8  organize a bike tour in the morning, around Lower

          9  Manhattan, and then about a thousand cyclists maybe

         10  three to four hundred of whom were disabled, had to

         11  board ferry boats right at the end of rush hour, and

         12  what we realized, what everybody realized, all of a

         13  sudden, was that of all the ferry slips there (Pier

         14  11), their accessibility compliance even can vary

         15  according to the stage of the tide.  That is one

         16  thing that I do not think has been made explicit

         17  enough despite the video's we saw earlier, is that

         18  it is sort of, you can solve part of the

         19  accessibility problem on the street by making a

         20  curb- cut, that is at such a level that it is

         21  accessible, but on the water, between the barges and

         22  the docks and the tide, there are so many variables

         23  in there that even where you create the facility on

         24  the dock to solve the problem, you may have the

         25  facility on the boat as we saw earlier.  When we
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          2  asked the Department of Transportation whether Pier

          3  11 had complied, your office had contacted us maybe

          4  six months or so ago, we were told that on the

          5  operational level they believe Pier 11 complied with

          6  ADA guidelines because one of the ferry slips was

          7  ADA accessible at all times.  Of course, there are

          8  six slips at that pier, and as you know, during rush

          9  hour, morning or afternoon or weekends or whatever,

         10  they are all jammed, so, having one out of six is,

         11  does not really, I do not think anybody wants odds

         12  like that.  But, unfortunately, there are thousands

         13  of New Yorkers that have to deal with it.

         14                 What we think, I guess there are two

         15  things;  one, in terms of fixing the problem, one is

         16  a sort of a long range process that could start and

         17  should start now but it should be to make a water

         18  transit plan, master plan for the City.  We talk

         19  about a ferry network, we talk about a ferry system;

         20  what we have is a network but we are a long way from

         21  having a ferry system.  If you would look at how the

         22  different nodes are operated, 58th Street in South

         23  Brooklyn is owned by the Economic Development

         24  Corporation and then leased to a private operator.

         25  The ferry dock at Snug Harbor Cultural Center is
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          2  owned by the City, administered by the Parks

          3  Department and then, I think, operated through an

          4  agreement with Snug Harbor Cultural Center.  At

          5  Battery Park City, it is a Port Authority facility,

          6  in an agreement with the Battery Park City

          7  Authority.  Inside North Cove is a water taxi stop

          8  that is operated by Liberty Landing Water Taxi

          9  Service through an agreement with the Battery Park

         10  City Authority.  And if you visit all the other

         11  places at the World Financial, excuse me, the

         12  World's Fair Marine and Flushing Bay, if you look at

         13  East 34th Street, if you look at West 38th Street,

         14  if you look at the facilities being created along or

         15  being talked about being created along the Hudson,

         16  the sort of alphabet soup continues, and what you

         17  have is a, sort of, morass of agencies because there

         18  is really nobody in charge and nobody looking at how

         19  these pieces fit together, and the disability

         20  problem is the perfect example of why a

         21  comprehensive approach, a comprehensive plan really

         22  has to be created.  Number two, I think that another

         23  way to solve the problem would be for the City to

         24  actually buy the boats.  When a private operator is

         25  operating a transportation service, it is not really
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          2  public transit, it is sort of private transit, it is

          3  open to the public, if you can get on and if you can

          4  afford the fare, but if we looked at ferry transit

          5  the same way we look at bus service, then we would

          6  have the Department of Transportation setting money

          7  aside to buy commuter buses which then could be

          8  leased to the private operators, and New York City,

          9  in fact, spends more than 50 million dollars a year

         10  buying buses which are then leased to private

         11  operators.  By having the City having ownership, and

         12  title, and control over those vessels, the City

         13  would have discretion over the design of those

         14  vessels, and the Council through its oversight, in

         15  relationship through the Executive Branch through

         16  the budgeting process, would have a say in how those

         17  vessels are designed, you know, we learned today,

         18  was said earlier that one place that access issue is

         19  not such a problem is the Staten Island Ferry, and

         20  that is the only ferry where the boat is actually

         21  owned by the City and operated by the City.  So,

         22  where the agencies, I think, or the City being you

         23  and the Mayor together and through the operating

         24  agencies, where you have the discretion to design

         25  the service that you want with the vessels that you
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          2  want, on the Staten Island Ferry side they are doing

          3  better than say on the private sector side, but as

          4  long as we have private discretion, and private

          5  control over all the ferry routes that are out

          6  there, we are still suffering the loss of the PATH

          7  train.  We are still suffering the reduced, the

          8  reduction in mobility in Lower Manhattan which means

          9  the business community is more reliant on the

         10  private sector or whomever to fulfill that

         11  transportation function of bringing people to Lower

         12  Manhattan and when the private sector is asked to

         13  fulfill that, they have to do it with the boats that

         14  are on the market, and now, as you heard from Mr.

         15  Johansen, a lot of the boats that they have brought

         16  in from Cape May were some of the early one, some of

         17  the fishing boats, some from Fire Island, some from

         18  Boston Harbor, as the season increases, as the

         19  tourism season increases in those places, there may

         20  be pressure to send those boats back to their home

         21  ports, and then who knows what kind of boats are

         22  going to be less desirable, but still economically

         23  productive in terms of how those decisions are made.

         24                 We support the goals of Intro. 261.

         25  I just got a copy of the bill yesterday, and have
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          2  not had a chance to look at all the geometric slopes

          3  and things like that, related to the ramps but we

          4  hope to have that probably by the middle of this

          5  time next week, but happy to work with the Council,

          6  and our new friends in the disabled community to

          7  bring, what we think is aesthetically, and

          8  practically a great form of transit for everybody,

          9  but make sure that it really is a form of transit

         10  and open to everybody. Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Yes.

         12                 MR. FOX:  Yes, hi, my name is Tom

         13  Fox, and I am the President and CEO of New York

         14  Water Taxi.  We are the newest waterborne

         15  transportation provider in the harbor.  We are the

         16  little guys.  The boats are 53 feet long, and in the

         17  absence of any ADA regulations, my partner Douglas

         18  Erst (phonetic), and myself did things to make the

         19  boats accessible, and I believe we meet all of your

         20  regulations as presented here.  We have had

         21  discussions with Anne in the past, people have taken

         22  rides on our vessel.  We have done things like make

         23  the vessel two feet wider.  Small boats are

         24  different than the bigger ferries, our designer

         25  wanted to make the boat 53 feet long and 17 feet
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          2  wide, we spent, I think, $25,000 to make the boat

          3  two feet wider, so that our isles would be 36

          4  inches. We have an ADA accessible head in the boat,

          5  only one head, but it is ADA accessible.  We did

          6  things like, instead of having, each of the doors

          7  has to be raised so that water cannot come into the

          8  boat when it washes up on the deck, as per the Coast

          9  Guard.  So, instead of having to ramp up and then

         10  ramp down again, we actually raised the whole floor

         11  of the main salon, if you will, three inches so that

         12  you just ramp up but then everything's level as you

         13  ramp up. We have two dedicated spaces for

         14  wheelchairs.  We have clamps that can be out down in

         15  those places to hold the wheelchair secure.  We do

         16  not have belts aboard yet, I mean, as per the

         17  specifics of this legislation.  We have, I went out

         18  and I got easy access, portable ramps to, because

         19  Anne pointed out the problems between the boat and

         20  the dock itself, so we have three foot long ramps

         21  that will bridge the distance between the boat and

         22  the small docks.  We have worked with the City of

         23  New York and in this place, we have had the support

         24  of the New York City Department of Transportation.

         25  On the two docks that we have installed, one at
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          2  Fulton Ferry Landing, and one at Pier 84 on 44th

          3  Street in the Hudson River Park, both are

          4  accessible, those are the only two docks that we

          5  have that are accessible, however.  And one of the

          6  problems that we have experienced is, even though

          7  our boats may be accessible, the docking facilities

          8  that we are landing at are not accessible.

          9  `              We support the intention of this

         10  bill, there are a number of issues that I believe

         11  may have drifted in here from recreational boating,

         12  like both launch ramps and slips that do not seem to

         13  relate to ferries, that may, you know, we would be

         14  glad to sit down and meet with whomever, to talk

         15  about ways that we think some of the language in

         16  here as relates to slips, specifically, 716, 17 and

         17  15 relate to recreational boats, not to ferries, so

         18  they may have, in drafting it you may have pulled

         19  language from other bills and put it in here, that

         20  may not fit into ferry legislation.

         21                 We will, quite frankly, have some

         22  problems addressing 719, which is the posting of

         23  schedules and rates.  Even though on our vessels we

         24  put a LED sign up front, so that people could see

         25  where the boat is going, so they do not have to yell
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          2  over to the boat, where is it going, is it going

          3  north, is it going south?  We do not have Braille

          4  signage, so there are some things that will

          5  difficult for us to comply with, but we will work

          6  with you to comply with them.  I would also like you

          7  to look, as Mr. Johansen said, at scale.  Water

          8  taxis are more like City buses, they carry 54

          9  passengers.  So, it is kind of like a bus stop, the

         10  come down the street, instead of going point to

         11  point, they connect three or four or five or six

         12  different locations.  So, some of these areas, like

         13  we are looking to go in Greenpoint, there is no

         14  electricity there, so providing telephones at the

         15  docking facility might be difficult, but again, we

         16  would look forward to working with the City Council,

         17  with the Mayor's Office to comply with the spirit

         18  and the letter of Intro. 261.  Thank You.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Point of

         20  clarification is like Venice, but we are more

         21  beautiful.

         22                 MR. FOX:  That is correct.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you.

         24                 MS. LEVIN:  Mr. Chairman, thank you

         25  for inviting us to testify today.  My name is Brenda
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          2  Levin, and I am the Director of Community Relations

          3  for NYC 2012.  I am accompanied by my colleague,

          4  Erica Nelson who is our Sports Manager.

          5                 I want to begin by commending this

          6  City Council for creating a Committee on

          7  disabilities, I think it is the first time in the

          8  history of the City Council that that has happened,

          9  and it is a very important step forward.  We, as

         10  many of you know, are a non- profit organization

         11  that was designated by resolution of your

         12  predecessor body and the Office of the Mayor to bid

         13  on behalf of New York City to try to bring the

         14  Olympic Games to New York in the summer of 2012,

         15  and, as you all know, we were selected by the United

         16  States Olympic Committee on November the 2nd to be

         17  the United States candidate city.

         18                 One of the hallmarks of our plan is

         19  that we will transport athletes in two forms of

         20  transportation, either by high speed, state- of-

         21  the- art ferry or dedicated commuter rail.  After

         22  the Olympic Games, two weeks later, you host the

         23  Paralympic Games. The International Paralympic

         24  Committee now has a formal arrangement with the

         25  International Olympic Committee that any Olympic
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          2  Games that is held, will be followed by Paralympic

          3  Games.  If it is helpful today, my colleague Erica

          4  Nelson will say a little bit about the Paralympic

          5  Games.  The Olympic Games are very exciting, the

          6  Paralympic Games are inspirational because people

          7  compete with such incredible determination to

          8  overcome terrible odds, and they do it with great

          9  skill, and verve, and dedication, so the Paralympic

         10  Games are very inspirational.

         11                 We are really here today to get

         12  further educated about accessibility.  We are

         13  planning for 10 years hence.  It is our

         14  understanding that ferries have about a 10- year

         15  life, so we are assuming that the next generation of

         16  ferries will be in place, hopefully designed as our

         17  friend Carter Craft recommended.  The ferries that

         18  we use for the Olympic Games and the Paralympic

         19  Games will, of course, be accessible, we expect that

         20  they will because of ADA, which be that time will be

         21  solidified in terms of ferries. They will have to be

         22  for our use because of the Paralympic athletes.

         23                 So, we are looking far ahead, we came

         24  today because Anne Emerman spent quite a bit of time

         25  with me on the phone, helping me get educated, and
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          2  Frieda Zames urged us to be here today.  We are just

          3  really getting in to being educated about

          4  accessibility.  I am just starting our outreach to

          5  the disabled community.  We are hoping that with the

          6  help of Ms. Zames and others, that we will be

          7  invited in March and April to start making

          8  presentations.  If it is helpful, my colleague Erica

          9  Nelson will say a few words about the Paralympic

         10  Games, if not, we have material that we can leave

         11  with you.

         12                 MS. NELSON:  I think, for the most

         13  part, Brenda covered most of what we are doing with

         14  the Paralympics.  As a sports manager, part of what

         15  I do is outreach to the Olympic and Paralympic

         16  athletes who live here in the tri- state region, and

         17  who are now supporting our bid.  Currently, we have

         18  32 Paralympians who are not only supporting our bid,

         19  but go out to events, do public appearances, are

         20  represented on our boards, our committee's, and are

         21  supporting our bid, and also, we have a Paralympic

         22  Advisory Committee which is made up of individuals

         23  from the, who are Paralympians who represent

         24  disabled sport, who have had a say in our plan,

         25  making sure that it is indeed in line with what the
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          2  Paralympic athletes would want, so that this could

          3  be the greatest Paralympic Games that have ever

          4  taken place.

          5                 We are committed to that, and realize

          6  that accessibility for athletes, whether it be the

          7  Olympians or the Paralympians, is the best that it

          8  can be.  For the athletes to be able to be

          9  transported from place to place, without having to

         10  worry about how they are going to get there, is very

         11  much, will set their mind at ease.  That is one

         12  thing that they should not have to worry about, in

         13  line with something that they have been competing

         14  for, training for, for 10, 12 years, if not longer.

         15  Transportation is something that we do not want them

         16  to not have to worry about when it comes to the

         17  Games.  So, we have this committee that is line,

         18  that looks at our plan, that is offered their

         19  opinions.  We have Paralympians supporting it, we

         20  are reaching out to the disabled sports community as

         21  best we know how and are looking forward to hosting

         22  the Paralympic Games, just as much as we are the

         23  Olympics. We are looking forward to offering them

         24  the excitement, the promotion, the, everything that

         25  New York has to offer, and making sure that we meet
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          2  their needs as best possible, leading up to 2012.

          3  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I want to thank

          5  the panel that just testified for coming here today.

          6    This is the first hearing that we going to have in

          7  this issue, but we going have a series of more of

          8  these hearings because this issue is a little bit

          9  complicated, although, in my opinion, it is very

         10  simple.  And it is about will and nothing else.

         11                 I would like to ask some questions

         12  from the panel at this point.  The first thing that

         13  I want to call to the attention to the issue of the

         14  Olympics, the Olympics will be very, very important

         15  for all of us, whoever do not realize and recognize

         16  this is just not living in this planet, it is some

         17  other place.  Then, you know that I indicated to the

         18  Committee that I am a supporter of the Olympics, and

         19  I believe that it will be a great thing for our City

         20  to have, but when I saw this idea, I immediately

         21  begin thinking about everything that can do for us.

         22                 One of the first thing that came into

         23  my mind was jobs, and economic development.

         24                 The second thing that came into my

         25  mind was, how do we going to have an Olympics here
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          2  when the Paralympics follow, and they cannot be

          3  transported in our City.  Not just by the waterway,

          4  but the subway system does not transport them, and

          5  the mass transportation system that we have in

          6  regard of the buses, do not transport people inter-

          7  borough, because they are not wheelchair accessible

          8  either.

          9                 Therefore, I begin looking at the

         10  waterway as a respond, and the answer to this

         11  problem, particularly because to me, this is a

         12  surface transportation system that is beginning to

         13  be put in place, therefore, before we develop

         14  something that we have to retrofit, let us develop

         15  it right.      And that is the purpose of this piece

         16  of legislation, to make sure that that happen now,

         17  and not in 10 years from now.

         18                 My question to all of you is, do you

         19  understand that the Olympics are important to New

         20  York City, and without the system being accessible,

         21  this bid of the Olympics, internationally, is worth

         22  nothing?

         23                 MS. NELSON:  That is a great point,

         24  and we certainly understand how important

         25  accessibility is.  Regardless of if we were holding
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          2  the Paralympics Games, or not, the transportation

          3  system would need to be accessible, and we certainly

          4  would be making those changes necessary, in addition

          5  to holding the Paralympic Games.

          6                 So, we look forward to the changes

          7  that need to be made, we know that the system need

          8  these changes to be made, and we are looking forward

          9  to that, and realize that there are a lot of changes

         10  that need to be made to the system in order to get

         11  it up to code, and available for anyone who wants to

         12  attend these games whether if they have a disability

         13  or not, so that they ca attend these games, and be a

         14  part, feel like these games are, that anyone can

         15  attend them regardless of your disability or not.

         16  We want New Yorkers from all over to be able to feel

         17  like this is their Olympics.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Yes.

         19                 MR. FOX:  I agree wholeheartedly

         20  which is why we took the effort in the beginning to

         21  design our boats to be accessible, we have 3 more

         22  boats under construction, they to will be

         23  accessible.  We are looking at building larger

         24  boats, they to will be accessible.

         25                 The power of the City Council,
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          2  however, is needed to made sure the land side

          3  connections are accessible because the entire

          4  waterfront is controlled by the City of New York.

          5  So to the extent that the vessels are accessible

          6  only in that the docking facilities are accessible.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Then, Mr.

          8  Johansen, do you have a problem, I read your

          9  testimony, I saw that you have issues with the

         10  legislation, but I need to ask you, in turn of the

         11  general concept here I just honestly need to ask you

         12  this question, how could we put a mass

         13  transportation system in place, an alternative one,

         14  a new one, that can expand all the way to Albany, by

         15  the way, all the way to Albany we can transport

         16  people in the river system and in the water system

         17  to Connecticut, from Connecticut back to New York,

         18  the Far Rockaways, I mean it is unendless (sic) the

         19  transportation that we can put in place to the

         20  water.  If this transportation is not wheelchair

         21  accessible from the beginning to the end, and from

         22  the end to the beginning, what are we doing in here?

         23    And why this piece of legislation, therefore, will

         24  be problematic for you?

         25                 MR. JOHANSEN:  Okay, first of all, I
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          2  would say that about 90 percent of what is in the

          3  legislation was drafted from the Federal

          4  legislation, from the Access Board work.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Which,

          6  incidently, you hear the two representative of our

          7  federal government here telling you, that that law,

          8  that piece of legislation is nowhere to be found.

          9  They are not even discussing it, and part of the

         10  research that my office has done is precisely, was

         11  go to the federal government to see where they were

         12  on this piece of legislation, meanwhile, we continue

         13  to develop the water system here, without that piece

         14  of legislation being in place.

         15                 MR. JOHANSEN:  Right, but that is

         16  what we have looked at as, even though it is not

         17  regulation yet, when we have gone ahead and built

         18  vessels, we looked at those proposed federal

         19  regulations as the standards to built the vessels

         20  at, and we support those regulations, we support

         21  much of what is here as far as the standards to set,

         22  and that is not a problem.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Yes.

         24                 MR. JOHANSEN:  I think I have listed

         25  in my testimony some of the shortcomings that I
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          2  think are problematic with the law, but the concept

          3  of the access and of setting standards, and having a

          4  uniform system throughout, we support.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Then, if we can

          6  modify certain aspects of the law that are proposing

          7  here, you would not have problems with the overall

          8  concept of making the system absolutely wheelchair

          9  accessible?

         10                 MR. JOHANSEN:  Without a doubt.

         11  Without a doubt.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  No problem?

         13                 MR. JOHANSEN:  No problem, and, but

         14  one of the things that we would like to see is that

         15  the standards, with the Federal standards the boats

         16  themselves move interstate, the boats that come in

         17  and out of the system, one of things mentioned about

         18  the 2012 Olympics is about the accessibility, if

         19  boats, when we have the Olympics here, just like if

         20  you are going to bring in buses from other places to

         21  support that, you are going to bring in boats from

         22  other places.  The problem is going to be, all the

         23  boats that are operating other places are all going

         24  to be in violation of the City law.  If they were

         25  all built under the federal standards, and the
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          2  Federal standards were, in essence, what these are,

          3  then every boat that comes in here is already,

          4  complies.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  But the problem

          6  with that is that the Olympics cannot transport

          7  people unless these boats are wheelchair accessible,

          8  because I mean, I do not see how the City is going

          9  to be successful in putting this bid out there into

         10  the International community without proving that

         11  they are doing everything that they have to do to

         12  meet the standard of making this City wheelchair

         13  accessible, and it is not going to be through the

         14  subway system, it is not going to happen, and if

         15  somebody here is dreaming about that, let me know

         16  because I am going to wake you very quickly.  It is

         17  not going to happen there.

         18                 Then the only two alternatives we

         19  have is the bus system, and the ferry system.  That

         20  is it, after that, it is over. And if we are putting

         21  right now in place the ferry system, as we speak, we

         22  are beginning to build it up, why not to make it

         23  right from the beginning?  Why not?  What impair

         24  that from be?  Being in this thought, what I am

         25  saying, therefore, is if we really want the Olympics
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          2  to come to New York, we better begin complementing

          3  what the Committee's trying to do, instead of not

          4  complementing that, and this piece of legislation is

          5  a message about are we supporting the Olympics or

          6  not, in big ways it is about that because I am going

          7  to tell you right now to the public and to everyone

          8  who is listening to me; if this piece of legislation

          9  does not become a reality, I am going to be the

         10  first one on the street campaigning against the

         11  Olympics, because I am not going to be a hypocrite

         12  telling the International community that they can

         13  come here and it is not transportation for people

         14  with disabilities.  It is wrong; morally and

         15  ethically.

         16                 Then I hear what you saying, and Mr.

         17  Fox I am very happy to hear your testimony that you

         18  are more than willing to refurbish or to retrofit

         19  the pieces that you have in your side, and I hear

         20  you about the piers being accessible, then I

         21  understand with your statement that you are in favor

         22  of making all of this system wheelchair accessible.

         23                 MR. FOX:  Correct.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  You are?

         25                 MR. FOX:  Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Okay.  Thank you.

          3    Those are my questions for you, I do not know if

          4   --.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  You had

          6  testified, I am sorry, the representative Mr.

          7  Johansen, you had testified that you think this

          8  bill, Intro. 261 is too broad, and you mentioned

          9  that, in effect, we would be mandating certain

         10  standards on vessels that operate internationally

         11  but if we get back to the ferry question, exactly

         12  what parts of 261 are you not comfortable with? That

         13  would help us.

         14                 MR. JOHANSEN:  Okay, some of the

         15  things that I see is a problem with the law, is that

         16  it puts us in conflict with Coast Guard regulations,

         17  and that is what the Access Board effort is about is

         18  the Coast Guard is part of the Access Board

         19  Committee, and they are identifying what things

         20  would have to be changed on the Coast Guard

         21  regulations.  One of the things that was brought up

         22  on the side loading vessels was that people come up

         23  to a 6 inch gap at the door, okay, a board that is

         24  across the door, and that is there, it is there

         25  because the Coast Guard requires that it be there
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          2  because that vessel, if it is built to go out and go

          3  to sea, because a lot of these are built as fishing

          4  boats or built as whale watchers, excursion boats,

          5  those type of things.  It is required for water-

          6  tight integrity of the vessel, and if I turn around

          7  and take that out, take a saw and just cut that

          8  thing out, then the Coast Guard comes down and says,

          9  hey you violated, this boat was built with this

         10  construction, when you presented the plans to the

         11  Coast Guard, it had that, it fulfilled the Coast

         12  Guard regulation, now you have taken it away, I am

         13  going to go ahead and shut your boat down because

         14  you now are no longer in compliance.

         15                 So, that is an issue that, as long as

         16  that is there, it is never going to be a compliant

         17  vessel because with a 6 inch gap you need a 60- foot

         18  ramp to make it compliant, and, no--.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Isn't that a

         20  fishing boat that you are talking about?

         21                 MR. JOHANSEN:  What I am talking

         22  about is a  fishing boat or any boat that was built

         23  for an offshore service, even some of the larger

         24  ferries that have offshore tickets have those, when

         25  I say ticket I meant a Certificate of Inspection, so
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          2  it really depends on where the boat is operated.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So you are saying

          4  that the current Coast Guard regulations prevent you

          5  from making the changes to those certain boats that

          6  would not be in, that would not meet the

          7  requirements of Intro. 261?

          8                 MR. JOHANSEN:  Correct.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  How many of those

         10  boats, or what proportion of your fleet would your

         11  comments pertain to?

         12                 MR. JOHANSEN:  Of our own fleet,

         13  there are 3 vessels that would be in that category.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Out of?

         15                 MR. JOHANSEN:  Out of 30, let's see

         16  29 plus we are getting 5 more boats, so the 29 owned

         17  boats, 3 of them would be side loaders with that

         18  capability, the other side loader has accessibility,

         19  it is a newer boat, it was built to different

         20  standards.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Why not all of

         22  them can be wheelchair accessible?

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Yeah, because, I

         24  think what we are trying to get at, and we have had

         25  many discussions about this prior to this hearing,
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          2  is that in many cases, the boats are available that

          3  would allow people who use wheelchairs, or scooters,

          4  or other devices to use the ferry services, and part

          5  of what we are trying to do in this hearing is to

          6  figure out why is it that those boats were not

          7  purchased to begin with, and is there some kind of

          8  commitment to think about that in the long term?

          9                 MR. JOHANSEN:  Every boat that we

         10  have built since 1989 is compliant, it does not have

         11  those restrictions, has the wide doors, has the wide

         12  aisles, and if they have, any of the ones built

         13  since 1989, if they have bathrooms on board, they

         14  are ADA bathrooms.  We have built them with the

         15  expectation that these are going to be the

         16  standards, and so, it is really, the three boats I

         17  spoke about were boats that were originally shuttle

         18  boats in the Gulf of Mexico that were converted into

         19  ferries and that when we took over the Delta Shuttle

         20  Route, we were already operating on that route, we

         21  continued to operate them.  We had plans on moving

         22  them out of the fleet, replacing them with newer

         23  boats, and then 9/11 came along, and we just have

         24  not been able to give them up because we need the

         25  vessels.

                                                            127

          1  MENTAL HEALTH AND TRANSPORTATION

          2                 But our intention, we do not

          3  operating those, our whole system was built on a

          4  bow- loading concept.  When we had to expand

          5  services post- 9/11, we had to alter our facilities,

          6  and we had to bring in boats that were not the kind

          7  of boats we normally operate.  If we had just

          8  continued to grow our normal way, we would have

          9  stayed with bow- loaders, the side loaders would

         10  have been gone by now, we would have had a compliant

         11  system.             CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Is that the

         12  only area of Intro. 261 that you have difficulty

         13  with, or is there another part of 261?

         14                 MR. JOHANSEN:  Well, I mentioned in

         15  my testimony that there are parts in there I just do

         16  not think that the City should be involved with

         17  legislating.  I think it is the Coast Guard should

         18  be involved with safety equipment, safety standards,

         19  and I would support then changes in the Coast Guard

         20  on a federal level, so that it applies to everybody.

         21

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  You know, here in

         23  New York we are kind of rebellious, and so sometimes

         24  we think that certain things should be done even at

         25  the federal level but we are not necessarily going
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          2  to wait for that to happen in all cases.

          3                 So, let's go at it from a practical

          4  point of view.

          5                 MR. JOHANSEN:  One of the other

          6  things that I mentioned is the changing of the

          7  standards, the Access Board report had set out

          8  standards and then when this bill was drafted, some

          9  of the standards were changed.  For example, on the

         10  Access Board gives an allowance if a vessel is below

         11  a certain size, and they go be square footage of

         12  deck area, that you can have a 32- inch aisle as

         13  opposed to a 36- inch aisle.  In a case like that,

         14  we had 6 vessels recently built that are small, they

         15  are less than 65- foot long boats, and they were

         16  built with 32- inch isles because that was what was

         17  in the Federal proposed federal standards, and we

         18  went ahead and built boats to the proposed federal

         19  standards, and those boats are like a year old, not

         20  even a year old.

         21                 Now the City standards come out and

         22  they say 36 inch, and so, we have built them to one

         23  standard, the City standard is different, and so the

         24  goal post is being moved, and that is where we think

         25  there is a problem.  If they stayed with the
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          2  proposed federal standards, that is what we have

          3  been using.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Sir, first of

          5  all, the federal law is not passed yet.  It will be

          6  eventually, because  eventually they have to

          7  regulate this, it is not going to be no choice.

          8                 MR. JOHANSEN:  Right.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  And when they get

         10  ready to regulate it, it is going to be including

         11  the wheelchair accessible issue.  It is going to be.

         12    Then I am not looking at the federal government in

         13  this piece of legislation, whatsoever, as a matter

         14  of fact I am giving them leadership, I am the

         15  leader.  This Council is the leader on this issue

         16  now, and I am not going to be sitting in here

         17  waiting for the federal government to provide to me

         18  the regulations that are needed to put together this

         19  system in place that will be inclusive, when we can

         20  do it right now, particularly, when the City is

         21  investing over 300 million dollars on this, of our

         22  own tax dollars that are involved in this.

         23  Recently, the New York Times published, 20 million

         24  dollars is going to be used to refurbish or to

         25  rebuild one of the piers that is going to be around
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          2  serving this system.  Then if we are using the

          3  monies of tax dollar payers, in case of people do

          4  not notice, those people who are in wheelchair, they

          5  pay taxes too, and that is the money that is being

          6  used for this.  Then part of my problem is, that

          7  although I understand the complication that you

          8  talking about, that complication is something that

          9  we are setting for ourself, and if we want to make

         10  this system wheelchair accessible, if that is the

         11  will of us, us meaning you, me, and everybody else

         12  who is sitting at that table and around this place,

         13  we will eliminate those problems, and the issue here

         14  is not that the Coast Guard have this particular

         15  regulation, that is referring to fishing boats.

         16  These are ferry boats and that is the kind of boats

         17  which you have, not fishing boats.  Therefore, the

         18  regulation would not be in contradiction with that.

         19  It will be helpful to it.

         20                 MR. JOHANSEN:  The regulation is not

         21  based on the type of trade that the boat goes into,

         22  the regulation is based on the construction of the

         23  vessel, based on what waters it can go into.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Exactly, and what

         25  we talking about is a ferry system that is going to
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          2  be serving New York City, and if it is going to be

          3  serving New York City, therefore, those systems

          4  shall be the kind of system that service the entire

          5  population, and if the system of Mr. Fox have the

          6  capacity to serve wheelchair users, then why all the

          7  other system don't?

          8                 MR. JOHANSEN:  Our vessels are just

          9  as accessible as his vessels.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Then if it is the

         11  same, and it is only 3 that you have, the question

         12  will be, and I understand that those 3 came on place

         13  because September 11.

         14                 MR. JOHANSEN:  No.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  No?

         16                 MR. JOHANSEN:  No.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Then I

         18  misunderstood you.

         19                 MR. JOHANSEN:  Yes, you misunderstand

         20  me.  The 3 vessels I spoke about are vessels that we

         21  own, New York Waterway owns.  We have additional

         22  vessels that are brought in because of, to

         23  supplement the service to Lower Manhattan, and those

         24  for the most part, are the side loading vessels

         25  also, so that is, it is a bigger problem than that.
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          2                 The issue of fishing boats, or

          3  whatever, something constructed as a fishing boat,

          4  there are ferries that are built today that still

          5  have a lip if they are, if they go in, you know, not

          6  just the harbor like ours, for instance, the boats

          7  that go down to Belford, or down to Monmouth County

          8  because they are out in the open harbor, they are

          9  past the Verrazano Bridge, they have to have that

         10  construction standard, that is something that the

         11  Coast Guard regulates, those boats will still come

         12  into Pier 11 and that will still be an accessibility

         13  issue that we have to deal with.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I hear you, I

         15  understand that now.  Thank you.

         16                 MR. CRAFT:  Madam Chairwomen, I think

         17  that one thing that we should do that we perhaps

         18  have not done, is sit down together, look at some of

         19  the issues where it is difficult to reach compliance

         20  with Coast Guard regulations, differentiate smaller

         21  boats from larger boats, and see if we can come to a

         22  compromise agreement on a bill that meets the needs

         23  of the Coast Guard, the needs of the disabled

         24  community, and the needs of the vessel owners, and

         25  begin that process now.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  It is no problem

          3  with me to sit and talk about this bill and see how

          4  we can accomplish an agreement of this bill, and I

          5  do not have no problem whatsoever in doing that.

          6  The main goal here is to make sure we produce a

          7  system, that at the end of the day, is wheelchair

          8  accessible for all New Yorkers, and that is what I

          9  am after, I am not after anything else.           And

         10  I also would like to make sure, and I will be very

         11  clear about this, I want to make sure that the

         12  Olympics come here.  I am invested on that, I am,

         13  and maybe some people are not, but I am.  I want to

         14  see it happen, and one of the things that I also

         15  want to see is the Paralympics happening here in

         16  this City. It will be very, very important for the

         17  disabled community to have that here.

         18                 Then I will be more than glad to call

         19  for a meeting in order to talk about this and

         20  negotiate, and have conversations about it, and you

         21  will hear from me, I will invite you to a meeting to

         22  see how we can talk about it.

         23                 Is any other piece of information

         24  that the Olympics Committee can give us on this

         25  issue?  Okay, I am interested in hear more from you
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          2  because the Paralympic issues are connected to this,

          3  and I hope that this hearing have bring to you and

          4  to your attention this issue.  I spoke of the record

          5  with you about this issue and I told you that I am

          6  concerned about it, then I hope that we can also

          7  speak on this issue and see how we can cooperate to

          8  resolve it.

          9                 MS. LEVIN:  We are just now beginning

         10  the more intensive exploration of the design work

         11  that is going to be required to ensure complete

         12  accessibility, and as we begin to meet with

         13  architects and designers, and we need advice, we

         14  will certainly be in touch with Anne Emerman, she

         15  has recommended that we get in touch with Jim

         16  Weisman at the Eastern Paralyzed Veterans

         17  Association which we will do.  Frieda Zames has

         18  recommended that we be in touch with someone, we

         19  will certainly do that, and we will look to you for

         20  further guidance, and we will certainly share

         21  information.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you.

         23                                     MS. LEVIN:  Today

         24  was educational for us, we were very happy to be

         25  here, to hear what people have to say, and it was
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          2  very fruitful, and thank you for your good words.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you, thank

          4  you very much, and thank you to all of you.

          5                 MS. BOLANOS:  Our next witness is Mr.

          6  James Weisman from the Eastern Paralyzed Veterans

          7  Association, and Mr. John Gresham from the New York

          8  Lawyers for the Public Interest.

          9                 MR. WEISMAN:  Hi, I am Jim Weisman, I

         10  am from the Eastern Paralyzed Veterans Association.

         11                 MS. BOLANOS:  Please raise your right

         12  hand, I am just going to swear you in.  Do you each

         13  swear to tell the whole truth in the testimony you

         14  are about to provide before this Committee, and that

         15  you will answer Council member questions truthfully?

         16                 MR. WEISMAN:  Yes.

         17                 MR. GRESHAM:  Yes.

         18                 MS. BOLANOS:  Please state your name

         19  and organization for the record before you begin

         20  your testimony, and we will start with Mr. Weisman,

         21  thank you.

         22                 MR. WEISMAN:  I am Jim Weisman, I am

         23  General Counsel of the Eastern Paralyzed Veterans

         24  Association.

         25                 We, the Eastern Paralyzed Veterans
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          2  Association has been involved in all accessibility

          3  initiatives in New York City since, I guess the last

          4  50 years.  There have not been that many, actually,

          5  in the last 50 years, but we sued New York City

          6  Transit Authority to make buses and subways

          7  accessible, and recently settled a curb ramp lawsuit

          8  with New York City and the Bloomberg Administration,

          9  bless them, came up with two- hundred and eighteen

         10  million dollars, despite the hard times, to finish

         11  the curb ramp installation which will be committed

         12  by 2008.  That was 8 years of fighting with Giuliani

         13  and a few months of discussions with this

         14  Administration.

         15                 I should tell you that I welcomed the

         16  idea of this Committee.  I think it is terrific.

         17  Progress is measured in strange ways, this Committee

         18  fried the Director of the Mayor's Office for People

         19  with Disabilities for having no position on Intro.

         20  261.  It was appropriate to do that, that never

         21  would have happened, if this Committee did not

         22  exist.  The City would have sent that Director and

         23  the Transportation Committee, or somebody unfamiliar

         24  with dealing with people with disabilities would

         25  have given him a pass.  He would have been able to
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          2  come in and out and say nothing, and the City got

          3  away with it for years.  So, it was just a pleasure

          4  to watch that happen.

          5                 We have reviewed, by the way, we have

          6  worked with New York Waterway, against and with, and

          7  for, actually too.  I started in about 1995 or 1996

          8  talking to New York Waterway about their buses.  I

          9  believe Mr. Johansen, who is quite committed to

         10  accessibility, I believe he is wrong about their

         11  position on their buses.  Their lawyer believes that

         12  they, their buses are covered by the provisions of

         13  the Americans with Disabilities Act, that relate to

         14  over the road style buses like Greyhound buses.  In

         15  fact, they are covered by the provisions of the

         16  Americans with Disabilities Act, Department of

         17  Transportation regulations, that affect public

         18  transportation providers, privately owned public

         19  transportation providers in the business of

         20  providing transportation, as opposed to hotel

         21  shuttles and things like that, these guys actually

         22  are in the transportation business.  They operate in

         23  fixed route service and everyone of their buses

         24  should have been accessible when they were

         25  purchased.  So, the fact that they are committed to
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          2  accessibility now is great, but, there is a lot to

          3  make up for, and a lot of inaccessible vehicles

          4  running around the City now which, of course, have

          5  to deny service to people with disabilities.  It is

          6  great that they are receiving accessible buses

          7  because they are sorely needed.

          8                 I was on the Access Board, I was

          9  appointed by President Clinton to the Access Board,

         10  which is the agency writing the regulations that you

         11  discussed as mythical or something a little while

         12  ago.  They are not mythical, but they are a while

         13  from being real, we are talking about a few years

         14  maybe.  What has to happen is, hearings have to be

         15  held on those regulations, then the Access Board

         16  itself, not the Advisory Committee to the Access

         17  Board, but the Board members themselves, who are

         18  composed of 14 or 15 federal agencies, and 14 or 15

         19  public appointees, like I was one, then review the

         20  testimony of the public and the proposed regulation,

         21  and then put out a final regulation.  Then the

         22  Department of Justice has to review it and decide

         23  whether or not to adopt it.  Now that does not mean

         24  that ferries have not been covered by the Americans

         25  with Disabilities Act, they have.
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          2                 Why didn't anybody get sued, is a

          3  good question? They probably should have been sued

          4  for buying inaccessible vehicles and inaccessible

          5  ferries.  There is not that many public agencies

          6  around, non- profits that do this stuff, and were

          7  busy. The other thing is that because there was no

          8  design standard, it is a very fuzzy area, people can

          9  call things accessible that are not. I mean, New

         10  York Waterway is telling you that everything is

         11  accessible, you just saw the two, the thing the

         12  wheelchair could not go up and down, the two

         13  runners, that would be an accessibility devise, I

         14  guess, to overcome some problem.  It is not to

         15  anybody's standard, that is for sure, and it is

         16  dangerous, but you could call it accessible and a

         17  judge might agree.

         18                 So, standards are necessary, which

         19  brings us to Introduction 261.  There is no federal

         20  preemption in this area, at least in so far as the

         21  Access Board is concerned.  I think that the

         22  suggestion that was made before of having industries

         23  sit down with the Committee staff, and work this

         24  out, is by far the best suggestion, otherwise you

         25  will end up with what we ended up with mass transit.
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          2                 Transit stonewalled this, and you had

          3  lawyers like me inventing design standards for buses

          4  and subways, it is a bad idea.  People who go to law

          5  school cannot do anything else.  If we could do

          6  something else, we would have done it, and we cannot

          7  design buses and subways, and we cannot design

          8  accessible ferries. We need people in the industry

          9  to use their expertise to solve this problem.  We

         10  need the City Council to provide the impetus to them

         11  to use their expertise to solve this problem, and I

         12  think that has been done.

         13                 The, couple of things that we should

         14  talk about.  We reviewed the standard, our

         15  architects, and there are some comments on the back

         16  about the differences, we did notice the 36, 32

         17  difference.  Edge protection should be required on

         18  all the ramps, wheels can go off sides of ramps even

         19  if they are short, and the chair will tip, and the

         20  length of the ramp should not matter, whether or not

         21  there should be edge protection.

         22                 The other thing I want to point out,

         23  it has come up a few times, but I told this story to

         24  your Council and I think it is worth repeating.  I

         25  was in Niagara Falls for work, I was going to speak
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          2  to the Niagara Falls Chamber of Commerce, Niagara

          3  Falls, New York Chamber of Commerce about ADA

          4  compliance at their annual dinner, and I was the

          5  speaker, and I just went sightseeing earlier that

          6  day, and I went on the Maid of the Mist, and they

          7  had the longest wheelchair lift I have ever seen.

          8  It had to be 300 feet long maybe, to get from the

          9  top of the gorge down, they have an elevator to it,

         10  then you get from the middle of the gorge down to

         11  the boat.  It must have cost a fortune, I could not

         12  even imagine it, and I asked the guy about it, and

         13  he said, oh, we are putting one in on the Canadian

         14  side too, we drive people down in the van now, but

         15  it is so popular we are putting one in on both

         16  sides, because you can leave from either side to the

         17  Canadian side or the American side.  That night,

         18  when I went to the Chamber of Commerce, I mentioned

         19  it in my presentation, and there was a whole table

         20  full of people I did not think of who would be on

         21  the Chamber of Commerce, of course, it is the people

         22  that own the Maid of the Mist, and he said, I have

         23  to be honest, we did not do this because we are

         24  wonderful people, we did this because the tour buses

         25  just won't come, if we are not accessible, and it
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          2  was so successful, we put one in on the Canadian

          3  side too, because senior citizens travel, and they

          4  go sightseeing, and they demand access.  And New

          5  York City, which is becoming revitalized, and

          6  becoming a tourist mecca just because of what

          7  happened, unfortunately, on September 11th I think,

          8  New York City should learn a lesson from the Niagara

          9  Falls Chamber of Commerce.  It is good business to

         10  be that accessible.  It is good business not to have

         11  to have a tour operator turn away because some of

         12  his clientele cannot use the facility.

         13                 I believe from talking to Pete

         14  Johansen, that New York Waterway is committed to

         15  accessibility.  I think we need the City Council

         16  though, to keep everybody's feet to the fire to make

         17  it happen.  I also think that New York City

         18  Department of Transportation has been terribly

         19  remiss about making piers accessible, and throughout

         20  the entire Giuliani, there should have been a

         21  transition plan to make this happen under the

         22  Giuliani Administration, there was not, it should

         23  happen right now.  They should be told to do it

         24  right now by the Council because there are

         25  inaccessible locations, they could solve that
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          2  problem.

          3                 Also, it is true that the PATH train

          4  being down has created a transportation crisis.  We

          5  know the transportation crisis better than anybody,

          6  people with disabilities do, they have had one

          7  forever, and when you are solving this problem for

          8  everybody, you have to make sure you solve it for

          9  people with disabilities.

         10                 I thank the Committee for the

         11  legislation, in particular, you council member, for

         12  the legislation, and we are ready to work with you

         13  to help you with design standards, surveying,

         14  anything else you might need.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you.

         16                 MR. GRESHAM:  I would like to pick up

         17  a couple of points that, or questions from the

         18  Committee.  One is the past efforts of the

         19  disability community to deal with public officials

         20  and operators.  Just to mention that Frieda Zames

         21  related her conversation with somebody from DOT

         22  whose attitude back in 1997 was, we put it in the

         23  contract, we are home, we are done.  So that, I

         24  think, is very enlightening, and the disability

         25  community has mounted two demonstrations, one in
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          2  1997, and the one that you well know about last

          3  September, so this has been out there in public, and

          4  well known, and your bill has been pending since

          5  September and we still have problems, so I

          6  anticipate that should answer that question.

          7                 We have heard a lot about these door

          8  sills or lips, as I understand it, they exist on

          9  some of New York Waterway's boats other than the

         10  ones which, the fishing boats, if you will, in my,

         11  in the back of my testimony are some photographs,

         12  this first one is from 1995, a New York Waterway's

         13  boat, I understand this one had a lip between the

         14  cabin and the deck.  I have got a photograph of it.

         15  The Staten Island Ferry has those, the older ones

         16  do, and they solved the problem very simply, they

         17  put in a little short ramp, about like that on each

         18  side of the door sill.  It is useable by people with

         19  wheelchairs, I have seen them do it.  This is not

         20  rocket science, it is easily solved.

         21                 The problem you can see in this first

         22  picture of the gap between the height of the float

         23  and the height of the boat renders the boat

         24  inaccessible, unless you do something about it, that

         25  is also depicted in the second picture, Frieda
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          2  confronting a similar barrier, this particular

          3  instance happens to be on the Jersey side, but it is

          4  the same problem, it was a nice picture.  If you

          5  look at the last picture, you can see how you can

          6  solve that, this is how Tom Fox's boat deals with it

          7                 Here is last Wednesday, Alexander

          8  getting off Tom Fox's boat at a point where the tide

          9  had gotten so low that the boat no longer lined up

         10  with the float, which it does most of the time, but

         11  when it does not, they have got a little ramp, a

         12  little gangplank.  This is not rocket science

         13  either.

         14                 Walking through the pictures, if I

         15  might, briefly with you, the third picture is one of

         16  the old New York Waterway's buses that is

         17  inaccessible now.  I mean, frankly, this does not

         18  look remotely like a over the road bus to me, this

         19  is a City bus. These things are still running

         20  around, this picture was taken in 1995, and they are

         21  going to be around for a while, unless somebody does

         22  something about it.

         23                 You mentioned Saturday Night Live, I

         24  cannot see your presentation very well, as you know,

         25  but I do not think you have this picture.  This
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          2  would be my nomination for Saturday Night Live. This

          3  particular gangplank, the fifth picture, has been at

          4  Pier 11 for, at least, the period since last May, it

          5  was there two days ago, it is 28 inches wide, there

          6  is no way a person using a wheelchair can use it.

          7                 Here is Alexander confronting a ramp

          8  with a bump last September, on the same day that you

          9  held your press conference there, that ramp had been

         10  there since May, as well.  Alexander is an athletic

         11  guy, in a light, manual chair and he could probably

         12  bump up and over that, but with some risk, and I do

         13  not think other people could.  So, in effect, even

         14  if Johansen is right and their boats are 100%

         15  accessible, if this is how you have to get on or you

         16  have that gap between the float and the boat,

         17  without any means of bridging it, that a wheelchair

         18  user can use, it does not matter if the boat is

         19  accessible.

         20                 Some of the problems of getting from

         21  the land to the boat are the problems created by the

         22  agencies that own the piers, and some are problems

         23  created by the operators of the boats who supply

         24  these little, short ramps or do not.  I have got to

         25  say I look forward to reading the IBO report on
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          2  cost, but everything I have seen suggests that the

          3  cost of retrofitting, and the cost of doing it right

          4  in the first place are both going to be minimal

          5  compared to the overall expense.

          6                 What did this thing cost compared to

          7  the cost of refurbishing Pier 11?  I have got to

          8  imagine not more than a few thousand bucks, this

          9  looks to me like something that came as a mail-

         10  order kit and was bolted together.  This is not even

         11  in the scheme of things in comparison to what it

         12  costs to drive the pilings, and pour the concrete

         13  and do all the stuff that was done to refurbish Pier

         14  11.

         15                 Now, one of the Committee's questions

         16  was, does anybody do this right, does anybody get it

         17  right in another city? And part of the answer

         18  already given was, yes, it is done right to a

         19  substantial extent on the Staten Island Ferry in our

         20  City, and Tom Fox has told you he did it right, and

         21  I would give you some pictures of how he did it

         22  right.  This is his float at Pier 84, you can see

         23  the location, the Intrepid is in the background.  It

         24  is very simple, you have the float where you

         25  actually board the boat, goes up and down on the

                                                            148

          1  MENTAL HEALTH AND TRANSPORTATION

          2  tide, it matches the boat pretty well, most of the

          3  time, you have an adequate gangplank from the fixed

          4  pier to the float, this is about as steep as the

          5  slope is going to get, by the way, this is not a

          6  very steep gangplank, and when the boat comes in,

          7  next picture, it pushes up against the float, snugs

          8  up against it, and then they open the gates, and in

          9  the next picture you can see Alexander Wood going

         10  down the gangplank, it is plenty wide, it is plenty

         11  strong, no problem; he boards.

         12                 This is the one accessible boarding

         13  point at Pier 11 which the boat was able to divert

         14  to, to allow Alexander and Anne Emerman to get on

         15  and off to try it out, but we got there at about

         16  10:30 in the morning and it was very quiet.  It is

         17  wholly different picture from what you would see at

         18  rush hour, and I do not know how practical it is to

         19  divert boats to one accessible location, and I have

         20  no understanding why we need to have only one

         21  accessible location.

         22                 This is Fulton Landing, below the

         23  Brooklyn Bridge, which you can see at the upper

         24  left;  Alexander rolling off the float, the boat to

         25  the float, there, and as you can see, they line up
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          2  pretty well, at this point.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Where is this

          4  one?

          5                 MR. GRESHAM:  The 11?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Yes.

          7                 MR. GRESHAM:  That is the Fulton

          8  Landing in Brooklyn.  Just out of the picture to the

          9  right, I cropped it, but just out of the picture to

         10  the right is the River Cafe, if you know where that

         11  is.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Yes, I got it.

         13                 MR. GRESHAM:  Okay.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you.

         15                 MR. GRESHAM:  One or two other

         16  observations about the big picture here.  New York

         17  City once had a huge ferry system. It started before

         18  the Revolutionary War with boats that were powered

         19  by sail and oars, and sometimes by horses, as soon

         20  as, horses on a treadmill driving paddle wheels, as

         21  soon as steam power was practical it appeared in the

         22  harbor.  The first steam ferry in the world was

         23  here, Cornelius Vanderbilt put it in service in

         24  1817, so we were a world leader in this field in the

         25  early 19th Century, and if you follow forward
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          2  through the 19th Century into the early 20th Century

          3  the number of lines increased, and the number of

          4  boats built up until, I believe, it topped at 167

          5  boats in service in 1904.  Many, many routes existed

          6  at that time, which then gradually fell away until,

          7  by the 1970's, the only thing left for the general

          8  public was the Staten Island Ferry, but we are going

          9  back to that for very good reasons.  I just give you

         10  that by way of some perspective, that New York was

         11  once pre- eminent to this field, and if we are going

         12  to become big in the field again, we ought to be

         13  pre- eminent, and that is one of the reasons why

         14  Intro. 261 needs to be adopted.  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I want to thank

         16  both of you for your testimony.  I know that you

         17  have been very helpful to the members of my

         18  Committee, and I appreciate all the help that you

         19  have give us, and I agree with you that although,

         20  perhaps we can have the will to do it, we need the

         21  law to make sure that it is in force.

         22                 MR. WEISMAN:  I should tell you that

         23  we are, New York City is really a leader, we are so

         24  myopic, we fight with each other, we talk to each

         25  other, we do not realize what is going on in the
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          2  rest of the country, not a lot.  We had 650

          3  wheelchair using athletes here, the summer before

          4  last, for the Veterans Games, and most of it took

          5  place in Central Park, but some at Randalls Island,

          6  some in the Bronx, and the MTA gave us their buses

          7  to use.  All of them stayed in hotels in Times

          8  Square, and almost to a man and woman, because there

          9  was quite a few women who participated as well, they

         10  were impressed with the accessibility of our City.

         11                 We should keep it up, we should be

         12  bragging about this stuff.  We should not be

         13  resisting at all because we are a showplace, we are

         14  a model for older cities who have retrofitted, who

         15  realize the importance of people with disabilities

         16  in their community, and our spending money to make

         17  people with disabilities financially independent.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I absolutely

         19  agree with you, particularly, if we in the City

         20  begin to understand that the population of the City

         21  is getting older, and it is not dying, it is staying

         22  alive, and the more we get older, the more impaired

         23  we become, physically, then we need to come to terms

         24  with that reality, and we are having a population

         25  that is as older as 80 years- old, and with that
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          2  comes certain impairments.  Then, if we pretend to

          3  maintain the City in a way that we think we going to

          4  for the population that we want to, then we need to

          5  realize that that population is going to be here and

          6  it is not going to relocate in Florida, because I am

          7  not going to Florida, I am staying in here. I

          8  imagine that a lot of older people are thinking the

          9  same way that I do.

         10                 MR. WEISMAN:  And we are never going

         11  to be able to afford to retire, so we ar going to

         12  have to work, so we are going to have to have an

         13  accessible environment to do it in.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  That is a

         15  dependency that I have.  Thank you very much to both

         16  of you.

         17                 MR. WEISMAN:  Thank you.

         18                 MS. BOLANOS:  Our next panel is

         19  Constance Lesold, Transportation Committee of

         20  Community Board 8 in Brooklyn.  Dr. Patricia

         21  Livingston, New York University, oh she had to

         22  leave, okay.  Dorothy Williams- Pereira, Disabled in

         23  Action of New York. Adam Brown, Working Waterfront

         24  Association.  Phyllis Silvestri, Fusun Ateser, and

         25  Connie Brady.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Mr. Jensen (sic)

          3  is here?  Yes.

          4  Johansen, I am sorry.  Mr. Johansen, I just, I know

          5  that Mr. Fox left but you still here, I just want to

          6  thank both of you for being willing to sit and talk

          7  about how we can resolve this issue.

          8                 I want to let the community know that

          9  this is moving forward and the posture that you have

         10  taken, and Mr. Fox, is very encouraging for me, for

         11  the members of this Committee, and I want to say, it

         12  should be very encouraging for the disabled

         13  community at large, and I want to thank you for that

         14  before you leave, in case that you may leave before

         15  I say that, okay, thank you.

         16                 MS. BOLANOS:  Please raise you right

         17  hand?  Do you each swear that the testimony you are

         18  about to provide for this Committee is the whole

         19  truth and that you will answer Council member

         20  questions truthfully?

         21                 EVERYONE:  Yes.

         22                 MS. BOLANOS: Okay, please.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  From this side,

         24  this way.

         25                 MS. BOLANOS:  Okay, we will start
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          2  from my right, your left.  Ms. Lesold, thank you.

          3                 MS. LESOLD:  My name is Constance

          4  Lesold, and I am representing the Transportation

          5  Committee of Community Board 8.  I have with me

          6  Maude Charpentier (phonetic), who I brought along

          7  with me as a witness to what I say, and as a partner

          8  for many, many years, the two of us worked with our

          9  children, our parents, our neighborhood on the

         10  renovation of the Franklin Avenue Shuttle.  And so,

         11  we have a deep appreciation of the number of years

         12  it takes to get changes in the transit system.

         13                 I would just have a few suggestions

         14  to offer to you today based on hearing this

         15  testimony here, it is a wonderful opportunity.

         16                 One is, I am going to flash you here,

         17  it is too cold to do it but, this is my, one of my

         18  strap- hanger shirts, I do not know if you contacted

         19  them but I think that it would be an excellent idea

         20  to contact NYPIRG, and the strap- hangers campaign

         21  because you are working on major changes in the

         22  transportation in the City of New York, and they

         23  have, certainly, in the past helped us to preserve

         24  transportation systems that were about to be

         25  destroyed, like the Franklin Avenue Shuttle, and et
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          2  cetera.

          3                 Maude and I are in agreement, and we

          4  have talked with Councilman Yassky that we will be

          5  in contact with the Borough President's Office in

          6  Brooklyn, if Marty Markowitz is not signed on, I am

          7  quite sure that he will, and we will be in touch

          8  with Yvonne Graham, his Deputy Borough President who

          9  is a leader in health affairs.  I was on his

         10  Transition Committee, so I know that they do have an

         11  interest in, a serious interest in both health and

         12  transportation.  And in the past, the Borough

         13  President's Transit Advisory Committee, which is

         14  made up of all the community board's in Brooklyn,

         15  has been very active in helping to preserve systems

         16  like "The Shuttle", and I think should take a stand

         17  on this, and I will suggest that they hold a meeting

         18  and that they invite some of your staff to make

         19  presentations, and I feel sure that they will.     I

         20  would think it might be valuable to you to know that

         21  I spoke to one of the press people at the press

         22  conference, whom I know from my neighborhood, and

         23  his question which shocked me was, well why are you

         24  interested, you do not live on the waterfront?  So,

         25  I think it is very important for people to know that
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          2  this is of concern to everybody.  My first response

          3  to him was that every neighborhood has disabled

          4  people, for many different reasons they might like

          5  to take a ferry, number one.

          6                 Number two, I am not afraid to say

          7  the word, war, which a lot of people seem to be

          8  afraid to say, you hardly heard it yesterday at

          9  Martin Luther King Jr's celebration, for example,

         10  but ware and the threat of war is, I believe,

         11  correct me if I am mistaken, has been what has

         12  pushed FEMA to order the extension of this transit

         13  system, these ferries.   And that being the case,

         14  the craziest thing in the world would be to exclude

         15  people with disabilities, especially mobility

         16  disabilities, from that planning for that system.

         17                 It is wonderful that we are all

         18  talking about the Olympics, and happy things, et

         19  cetera, et cetera, but what is pushing this system

         20  is the threat of war, and the need of evacuation.

         21  And I have right here two things that I think show

         22  the concern in my neighborhood of that.

         23                 One is Brooklyn's Visitors Guide to

         24  Brooklyn, or the Brooklyn Tourism Council, it leaves

         25  out the neighborhoods of Central Brooklyn, sorry,
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          2  you cannot do that.  We do want to be part of every

          3  system.

          4                 The other is Indian Point, and the

          5  whole argument over Indian Point is whether we will

          6  be able to evacuate anybody from anywhere, and I am

          7  not going into all of that.  But this is all a part

          8  of a system that says that everybody has to be

          9  included in plans for, or to prevent,you know,

         10  anyway whatever.

         11                 That is the main thing, comment that

         12  I have to make, I certainly did enjoy Sidney's

         13  speech myself.  I understood, as Anne knows how

         14  terrible it is have to walk behind somebody.  My

         15  husband was in a wheelchair and headed the

         16  committee, many of the transit organizations that

         17  were, the Committee for Better Transit for New York

         18  City.  If he were alive, they would certainly be

         19  down here today, and there are another a group that

         20  I know would really want to be on this would be the

         21  Committee for Better Transit.

         22                 We also had experience in Board aided

         23  testimony, in giving testimony in regard to ferries

         24  in the past.  We were one of these branches of the

         25  City of New York that fought hard even though we are
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          2  in the center of Brooklyn, to prevent homeless

          3  people from being put on ferries.  And we had a lot

          4  of the concerns about the safeties of ships that the

          5  Coast Guard has, that whole business, but I mean,

          6  everybody should be in this, and everybody should

          7  both be protected and be able to use the system.

          8                 When the, as far as the Olympics is

          9  concerned, I admit to mixed feelings, which I will

         10  not go into, but I do hope that since you have great

         11  concern in this, that you will look carefully, and

         12  that future heads of this Committee will look

         13  carefully at what happens to the buses when the

         14  Olympics come.  One of the things that contributed

         15  to my husband's death, as far as I am concerned, was

         16  the Atlanta Olympics because the accessible buses

         17  went to Atlanta, and he was one of these guys that

         18  was always going to take the bus to go to his rehab,

         19  whether the temperature was 105 or what.  So he was

         20  out on the streets waiting for hours for an

         21  accessible bus.

         22                 So, it is wonderful that we are

         23  planning for these happy events, but in that

         24  planning we have to consider the people who are

         25  already here who have their everyday events to go
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          2  through, who are disabled.

          3                 Just in one last comment here, I am

          4  happy that I have with me here today, at least 6

          5  members of the Brooklyn Mental Hygiene Court

          6  Monitors Project, who have been in and out, if you

          7  want me to name them, I will.  But I think the fact

          8  that they came is very exciting to me because it

          9  means there is still a unity between people with

         10  different disabilities.  And if you think you can

         11  divide the disabilities up so easily, ain't so.  I

         12  mean I monitor the Mental Hygiene Court, and I see

         13  people coming in there as clients, in wheelchairs,

         14  for their hearings in regard to a psychiatric

         15  disability.  I also work a lot with seniors, I am

         16  one myself now, and I intend to take this

         17  information back to the Crown Heights Interagency

         18  Council, and to the Brooklyn Interagency Council

         19  because they should be active on this, all these

         20  interagency Councils.

         21                 I think that any of us could land up

         22  in a wheelchair, and sometimes we do, and in the

         23  case of people with psychiatric disabilities with

         24  the heavy use of medication, all kinds of mobility

         25  problems develop, there is dizziness, there is
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          2  visibility/vision problems.  You know in nursing

          3  homes where there have been the scandals over

          4  medications people have often times been confined to

          5  wheelchairs, just because they are being given to

          6  much medication, that happened to my father for a

          7  while.

          8                 So, at any rate, I just want to thank

          9  you for the opportunity to be here, and I thank

         10  Maude for being here with me, and you will get

         11  testimony, in writing, from the Transportation

         12  Committee of Board Aid, who gave me permission and

         13  they will all sign it next week.  Thank you.

         14                 MR. BROWN:  Good afternoon, thank you

         15  for having me here to testify.  My name is Adam

         16  Brown, I am President of the Working Waterfront

         17  Association, a non- profit, Maritime and

         18  Environmental Advocacy organization.  In addition, I

         19  chair a subcommittee of the Harbor Operations Safety

         20  and Navigation Committee of the Port of New York and

         21  New Jersey.  Both of these organizations are broad

         22  collaborative efforts of industry, government, NGOs,

         23  and community working together to identify and

         24  resolve safety, access and operational issues within

         25  the New York New Jersey Port complex.
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          2                 Working Waterfront Association

          3  respectfully submits the following comments in the

          4  hopes that we can share our knowledge and help

          5  facilitate a productive resolution to the serious

          6  problems and inequities voiced within Intro. 261.

          7                 I would just like to say, I am going

          8  to paraphrase a little bit here because some of what

          9  we have written in our testimony has been covered by

         10  the discussion from Tom Fox and Pete Johansen, but

         11  what I want to first say, and as we have spoken

         12  about before, is I strongly concur with the spirit

         13  of what is stated in the legislative findings and

         14  intent of 261.  I think, as you have said before, it

         15  is the right thing to do, it is the moral thing to

         16  do, and more than that, is I would have to answer to

         17  my mother and father who are both aging and she

         18  would smack me in the head.  But beyond that, I

         19  think we also recognize just how easily and how

         20  close any of us are to being disabled, it just takes

         21  looking the wrong way crossing the street, and any

         22  of us would be in the same position.

         23                 I work in an industry where I could

         24  become disabled at any point and I intend to live a

         25  long life, and expect at some point I will have some
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          2  sort of disability, so I think that that goes

          3  without saying.

          4                 One of the issues here with 261,

          5  however, is that it attempts to take very broad

          6  approach in defining the scope of the problem and

          7  the solution.  It inadvertently lumps standards for

          8  all facilities, docks, piers, and other passengers,

          9  vessels together with ferries and terminals.  It

         10  includes recreational facilities, commercial

         11  facilities, and shore side and water side with the

         12  overlapping regulations and authority.

         13                 This has been forever one of the

         14  major problems in getting anything done in a

         15  waterfront, and particularly, in New York.  Some of

         16  the waterfront facilities are owned by the City,

         17  operated by private operator, some are owned by the

         18  State, operated in joint agreement by the City, it

         19  goes on and on and on, and then you have got the

         20  water side.  Vessels are, commercials vessels are

         21  regulated by the Coast Guard, federal regulations.

         22                 I think what we may be looking to try

         23  and do instead here is to try and break some of it

         24  out.  I think Intro. 261 is, is trying to be

         25  inclusive it becomes confusing, and beyond that, I
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          2  think what it also tends to do is, it, there is the

          3  issue of federal preemption, which was brought up

          4  before, and I would like to speak to that a little

          5  bit more directly.

          6                 We put a position paper out on a

          7  related issue recently, and it was an issue that

          8  came up in Washington state as well, and I am going

          9  to quote from that, this is from a paper that we had

         10  the Law Firm of Haulin and Knight (phonetic) put

         11  together for us, they are Admiralty Law Firm.  "With

         12  respect to commercial vessels, there is an even more

         13  comprehensive federal regulatory scheme governing

         14  vessel design, construction, alterations, repairs,

         15  maintenance, operation, inspection, manning and crew

         16  qualifications, the citations are included.

         17  Moreover, under a recent U.S. Supreme Court decision

         18  analyzing whether federal regulations governing oil

         19  tankers preempted regulations enacted by the State

         20  of Washington, the Court concluded that only the

         21  Federal Government may regulate the design,

         22  construction, alteration, repair, maintenance,

         23  operation, equipment, personnel qualification and

         24  manning of tankers.  The Court also discussed

         25  federal preemption principles as they relate to
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          2  state rules and regulation of vessels operating in

          3  interstate and international commerce and concluded

          4  that where a state of local authority seeks to

          5  regulate vessels engaged in domestic or

          6  international trade, these regulations must be

          7  limited in scope or impact.  For example, state

          8  rules must be justified by conditions unique to a

          9  particular waterway, cannot impose a substantial

         10  burden on vessel operations within the state's

         11  jurisdiction, pose a minimum risk of innocent

         12  noncompliance, which is a real issue here, and must

         13  address peculiarities of waterways within

         14  jurisdiction in an area the federal government

         15  neither regulates nor considered for regulatory

         16  oversight."  Now, the way that that plays out here

         17  is, while we are trying to get increased access for

         18  people with disabilities on ferries, inadvertently,

         19  by creating equipment standards on vessels, and on

         20  shore side structures, now we are trying to address

         21  with one local law, two separate issues, and we may

         22  not get any of them done.  And I strongly feel that

         23  should Intro. 261 be passed, the value of it may be

         24  lost because the vessel regulation component of it

         25  will almost surely be argued again in court, and
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          2  very likely will not, will not succeed.

          3                 The reason that vessels, particularly

          4  commercial vessels, are regulated by the federal

          5  government, by the Coast Guard, is to have some sort

          6  of consistency nationwide, but also internationally.

          7    There are international compacts and agreements

          8  regarding vessels that come in and out of the

          9  country, and those, some of those requirements even

         10  supersede our federal regulations, so that even our

         11  federal vessel regulations must be subservient to

         12  those.

         13                 The other reason for having vessels

         14  regulated by the federal government is because it is

         15  to prevent just the very sort of local laws, which

         16  would regulate how a vessel operates or is built in

         17  every separate location.  Imagine if you will, we

         18  pass Intro. 261, then New Jersey comes in and

         19  passes, or a city in New Jersey comes in and passes

         20  another regulation regulating equipment and manning

         21  and any other aspect of a vessel, and then a city or

         22  two cities in Connecticut tries to do the same

         23  thing.  A vessel which passes through all these

         24  overlapping jurisdictions will be in violation of

         25  every one of them, likely, and they will not be able
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          2  to operate.  So, that is the logic behind having the

          3  federal oversight.

          4                 Now, that being said, I think that,

          5  so I think that technically, and from a point of

          6  law, I think there is problems with Intro 261.  I

          7  do, however, again strongly concur with the intent

          8  of it, and I think what it should do is raise the

          9  level of discussion so that we can start to get all

         10  of the, get the Coast Guard involved, get industry

         11  involved, as Tom Fox has said, and as I had offered

         12  to you before, let us start the discussion again,

         13  and see what we can do with 261 to ensure that what

         14  we are really looking for, which is maximum access,

         15  full access, to passenger ferries for people with

         16  disabilities but beyond that to, to the facilities

         17  as well, and see what kind of law we can come up

         18  with which will address that and not be in conflict

         19  with federal regulations.  That is my main concern

         20  with this, is that going forth now with it as it is,

         21  that they will pass it but it will have no teeth.

         22                 Anyway, thank you very much, and I

         23  will be happy to answer any questions.

         24                 MS. BOLANOS:  Next.

         25                 MS. WILLIAMS- PEREIRA:  My name is
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          2  Dorothy Williams Pereira.  I am the Vice President

          3  of Disabled in Action, and I want to also mention

          4  that I am on the Citizen's Action Team of Rockaway,

          5  which is very involved in the waterfront, and I am

          6  going to mention this although I had not planed to,

          7  that I am also the mother of a severely disabled

          8  daughter, who is 28- years- old, who had

          9  hydrocephalus and cirrhosis of the liver.  So I have

         10  been involved in the past, very much in the Patients

         11  Rights Movement, and I was on the Health Systems

         12  Agency of New York, and so I am sort of a newcomer

         13  to disability rights, per se, but I have been there

         14  somewhat in other capacities in the past.

         15                 I am sitting here, and I am having a

         16  lot of trouble with my patience, I am not a very

         17  patient person, and I see that there is a resistant

         18  community, and then there is a complaint community,

         19  and there is a sue community, and you can go and you

         20  can, first you get the resistance, and then you make

         21  complaints, and then you sue, and somehow this all

         22  seems like very cost unefficient (sic).  It seems to

         23  me that if we are going to have preventative

         24  medicine, we ought to have preventative on this

         25  level too.  And it seems to me that it will cost us
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          2  more to fix the problem after it is messed up, then

          3  it will to do it right in the first place, which has

          4  not been done already.  To some degree, we are in

          5  that boat already because it's already been a shame

          6  unto the City, a shame unto any reasonable people

          7  who have any concern for people who are disabled, or

          8  senior citizens, which have obviously been with us

          9  before this ever happened, so I do not know why it

         10  was not thought of 100 years ago.

         11                 It seems to me that we have got to

         12  not worry about all these niches that we are going

         13  have trouble with.  We have a Land Use committees

         14  that give variances, so if there is a problem with

         15  some kind of variance that needs to be gotten for

         16  some kind of problem, does not mean we should not

         17  have Intro. 261, and it seems that we need to prime

         18  the pump and get something going because disability

         19  rights, and disability accessibility is practically

         20  nonexistent, and we pay a major cost that is not a

         21  part of this financial cost that we are talking

         22  about.

         23                 We look at people like Einstein and

         24  Helen Keller, or Anne Emerman, and Frieda, and we do

         25  not remember all the people that have gone to waste,
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          2  in one way, shape or another, in proportion.  We do

          3  not understand that there should be hundreds more

          4  Anne Emerman's, and Frieda's here that may have been

          5  lost,  as you say in the Civil Rights Movement, the

          6  mind is a horrible thing to lose, we have lost a lot

          7  of people already that could have contributed a lot

          8  more to this society, and that should have been

          9  given the tools to do that.

         10                 This is not just, are you going to

         11  get on a boat, or are you going to get on a bus, it

         12  is, are you going to be able to develop your life?

         13  What is going to be the quality of your life and

         14  what is going to be the quality of what you are able

         15  to give back and to take, as well?  You have a right

         16  to go to a concert in Staten Island, even though you

         17  are disabled, but you also have a right to give

         18  benefit to society.  Plenty of disabled people have

         19  benefitted society, Helen Keller, Albert Einstein.

         20  Albert Einstein had I believe, hydrocephalus, like

         21  my daughter does.  These people climbed a mountain

         22  of frustration, and a mountain of barriers.        There

         23  is a lot more to be had out there, a lot more

         24  resources, a lot more people that should be given

         25  these resources so they can fully develop.  It is
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          2  outrageous, it is a shame on society, it is a shame

          3  on New York, it is a shame on all humanity, that

          4  this has not been done already.  It is well overdue,

          5  you must prime this pump, you must get these things

          6  passed, and if there is problems that need variances

          7  or whatever you want to call them, that has to be

          8  taken care of, but we cannot be sitting here

          9  worrying about every little law in the world because

         10  what we are worrying about is getting people to have

         11  quality life and to be able to give, and we are

         12  paying the cost as a society for all those that do

         13  not have the ability to get accessibility and to

         14  cross these barriers.  We are paying as a society,

         15  and we are paying with a lot of losses, and this

         16  cost is worse than anything that any little dollar

         17  cost in some financial budget.  Thank You.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I take that you

         19  support the piece of legislation.

         20                 MS. WILLIAMS- PEREIRA:  Yes, and the

         21  Olympics, too.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you.

         23                 MS. BRADY:  Thank you for what you

         24  said, it was strong, it was good.  I am Connie

         25  Brady, I come here as member of DIA, and I was a
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          2  teacher for 30 years in East Harlem in New York, and

          3  i loved it, it was a wonderful job, and now I have

          4  MS, and I am becoming more and more disabled as time

          5  goes on, so it is another whole learning process for

          6  me, it taking place later in my life.             And

          7  I want to applaud this Council, I do not know what

          8  you had to do with the buses being accessible, but I

          9  take the buses everywhere, all over Manhattan all

         10  the time, I think it is wonderful they are there.  I

         11  applaud you in your efforts to make the ferries

         12  accessible because I am excited about the Olympics

         13  coming here, and I want to be able to go there

         14  without a lot of trouble because, right now, I have

         15  to call places before I go there to make sure they

         16  put their ramp out or blah, blah, blah.  There is

         17  all kinds of things you have to do when you are

         18  disabled to make sure the place will receive you.  I

         19  would like it if that was not true for the Olympics.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  If it wasn't

         21  what?

         22                 MS. BRADY:  If it was not true, that

         23  you had to arrange everything, if it was just there,

         24  and you could just go and get on and go. So thank

         25  you.

                                                            172

          1  MENTAL HEALTH AND TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  I know that you

          3  do not have access to a microphone, I am going to

          4  ask the doctor to allow you to, oh perfect, thank

          5  you, very kind of you.

          6                 MS. SILVESTRI:  I do have a big

          7  mouth, I probably could talk without it.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  No, no, do not

          9  worry, we need you speak in the microphone because

         10  this is being taped for the purpose of the record.

         11                 MS. SILVESTRI:  My name is Phyllis

         12  Silvestri, and I came here to speak about Access- A-

         13  Ride.  A lot of my friends use it, and it is a

         14  wonderful thing that it is available, but there is

         15  plenty of room for improvement.  So, after I tell my

         16  little story, I will be available if anybody wants

         17  me to discuss it further.

         18                 But I particularly want to talk about

         19  something that happened Wednesday.  A friend of mine

         20  who uses, can you hear all right?  Oh, I thought

         21  something was wrong.  Can you hear all right?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Yes, we are

         23  hearing you right.

         24                 MS. SILVESTRI:  All right, on

         25  Wednesday I went to the theater with a friend of
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          2  mine, I accompany her, she uses Access- A- Ride, and

          3  we left the theater which is in the middle of 42nd

          4  Street, between 7th and 8th Avenue.  We were on the

          5  north side of 42nd Street, and the Access- A- Ride,

          6  I was outside looking around because usually there

          7  is a few buses, it came on the south side, and

          8  crossing against the traffic and everything was

          9  really something.  The driver was wonderful, was

         10  very nice, there is no problem with him, but the

         11  really serious problem was then we went to pick up

         12  somebody at an address, 1560 Broadway, and it was

         13  supposed to be an office building.  We rode around

         14  for an hour in the cold, well, we were warm but

         15  these two people were outside waiting, it was

         16  getting very late, it was dark, and we just could

         17  not find it.  We were going back and forth down the

         18  side streets from 6th Avenue to 8th Avenue, to be

         19  able to turn around, and it just so happens right

         20  there, which is around 47th Street, it is an

         21  intersection, Broadway and 7th Avenue come together.

         22                 Finally, we found the place, we

         23  really did not see the address, but the wife ran out

         24  in the street and waved us know. So that is how she

         25  got us because we still did not see the address. She
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          2  and her husband got in the van, and then she is

          3  showing us the theater ticket, they were at the

          4  Palace Theater, and she says, look, it says 1564

          5  Broadway, which was the theater, but she was at, God

          6  knows where, which is supposed to by next door but

          7  we did not even see the theater, we did not even

          8  know, I mean, the theater is a landmark, so if she

          9  would have told the dispatcher that she was at the

         10  Palace Theater, standing in the lobby, whatever, I

         11  think it probably would have been a lot better.  But

         12  they do ask you the address also, and 1560, I went

         13  today to check it out again, because I wanted to see

         14  what is what.  Even the Palace Theater, I did not

         15  see a sign that said Palace, it said Aida all over

         16  the place but I did not see Palace, and anyway, 1560

         17  was where it is the tourist center, there is a

         18  store, that is a tourist center that you go in, that

         19  is sort of a landmark, I mean, I have been there so

         20  if I know about that, I would have been able to do

         21  something about it.  But the real serious problem is

         22  that 1564 and 1560 are both on 7th Avenue, they are

         23  not on Broadway.  I saw the sign, even when we

         24  turned, we turned on 7th Avenue after going down

         25  Broadway several times.  So when I went into the
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          2  Palace Theater today, I spoke to someone in the box

          3  office, and I said, why does;your ticket say

          4  Broadway, when you are on 7th Avenue?  I looked at

          5  the signs again. She said, we have this problem all

          6  the time.  So whether people come by car or

          7  whatever, it is a problem.

          8                 So, I think, one of the things is the

          9  dispatchers that get the information should know if

         10  there is a landmark, they need an address also, they

         11  need a cross street, but if it is across the street

         12  from a prominent building like the Empire State

         13  Building or something, it is something that is easy

         14  to be found.  And also the people who call up,

         15  should be told to please give that information, to

         16  make it easier because, after all, gasoline is being

         17  used, sometimes it even takes hours to get home with

         18  different people being picked up and delivered in

         19  different locations, and so, as I said, it is a

         20  wonderful service but my experience even going with

         21  my friend, we have had other problems too.  So I

         22  hope something can be rectified so that the service

         23  comes out a little better.  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you for

         25  coming to testify. Just for your information, this
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          2  Committee has hold three hearings on the issue of

          3  Access- A- Ride, and it is planning to bring a

          4  fourth one because we are going to fix this system

          5  one way or another. Then keep yourself informed

          6  because when the Access- A- Ride hearing come, you

          7  will learn through the mailing that is put out

          8  there. You asked me the question about Access- A-

          9  Ride, and I told you that if you wanted to testify I

         10  would allow it on that issue, as a courtesy to you,

         11  but the subject today was not related to that.

         12                 MS. SILVESTRI:  Yes, I know.  Well, I

         13  only found out when I came.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  But is related in

         15  terms of transportation, and I am glad that you

         16  stayed.

         17                 MS. SILVESTRI:  Okay, I appreciate

         18  it, thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Thank you very

         20  much.  Sir, in regard of your testimony, our

         21  intention with this piece of legislation is not to

         22  get in contradiction with any regulation that the

         23  federal government may have or may not have.  Our

         24  intention with this piece of legislation is to make

         25  sure that if we going to develop a ferry system in
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          2  New York City, that that ferry system is going to be

          3  inclusionary, that is the bottom line in regard to

          4  this law.  And if you would like to be part of the

          5  group of people who are working on this to make sure

          6  that that is what is achieved, because I understand

          7  that that is what you said.  You are more than

          8  welcomed to be part of the meeting that I am going

          9  to hold, and we will invite you to come to the

         10  meeting that we going have with the owners of the

         11  ferries, if you would like to be invited.

         12                 MR. BROWN:  We would be very happy.

         13  We work with the ferry Subcommittee of the Harbor-

         14  Ops Committee, and the Coast Guard regularly on

         15  these issues, and the subcommittee that I chair, for

         16  the Harbor- Ops is Community Liaison and Oversight,

         17  so it is,

         18  we will absolutely be happy to.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  It is no problem,

         20  you will be invited.  And I want just to clarify for

         21  the benefit of anyone who may be thinking that this

         22  is in contradiction or have some

         23  situation with federal laws.  Federal laws do not

         24  exist in regard to this issue, they have not issued

         25  the laws, they have been a stalling nation for 12

                                                            178

          1  MENTAL HEALTH AND TRANSPORTATION

          2  years, they have said that they going to issue

          3  regulation and they have not, and we are not going

          4  to allow the ferry systems to develop in New York

          5  City now that this opportunity is coming through

          6  without being inclusive.  If it is something that we

          7  can do, a legacy that we can leave, will be this.

          8  That at least we can say the ferry system was put in

          9  place wheelchair accessible, and accessible to

         10  people with disabilities in general.  And I know

         11  that for your testimony, that is what you intending

         12  to also do, and to make it inclusive instead of

         13  exclusive.

         14                 MR. BROWN:  Exactly, we are just

         15  hoping our involvement is that, that we want just

         16  ensure that there is appropriate access created and

         17  done in a way that does not restrict it, by points

         18  of law.  And I understand your point about there

         19  being no ADA regulations which cover what we are

         20  talking about.

         21                 The issue is more of, and this is

         22  where it is a little complicated, is that just

         23  vessel regulation in general is federalized, so that

         24  because there is no specific regulation regarding

         25  ADA requirements for ferries, that is where it
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          2  becomes problematic.

          3                 That does not mean that the vessels

          4  still are not regulated by the federal government,

          5  but I think there are ways around it, I think there

          6  are ways to deal with it, and I think the discussion

          7  that we are starting to have will raise those.

          8                 I think we should raise them, what we

          9  are doing here in New York and with Intro 261, I do

         10  not think should just stay in New York.  I think

         11  what it really should do is raise the issue to a

         12  national level because what we are having this

         13  problem here, every other city is having the

         14  problem.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  Absolutely.

         16                 MR. BROWN:  I think that is the value

         17  of the discussion that we are having now, and we

         18  want to make sure that what laws we pass, or what

         19  agreements we come to with the City, or with the

         20  operators, will benefit every other city in the

         21  country.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LOPEZ:  We agree on that.

         23    Thank you. I want to thank everybody who came to

         24  the hearing today.

         25                 This is the first hearing, let me
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          2  clarify this. This is the first hearing on this

          3  issue that we going to have.  We going to have all

          4  the hearings on this issue because this piece of

          5  legislation is going to be passed, as God is my

          6  witness, I am saying that right now, right here.

          7                 We are going to approve a version of

          8  this piece of legislation, and it is not going to be

          9  a watered down version.  It is going to be a version

         10  that is going to make sure that it is a piece of

         11  legislation that guarantee inclusion on the water

         12  system that we are putting together.

         13                 What is the good news is that appear

         14  to be a willingness from the part of the providers

         15  to cooperate on this, and with the amount of

         16  supporters that we have in the bill, I do not think

         17  it is going to be too difficult to make this pass.

         18                 I was a little bit hurt by the

         19  testimony of the Administration that was so

         20  ambiguous but if it was ambiguous they need to get

         21  clear, and in the next hearing we going to have here

         22  the Commissioner of Transportation because it is

         23  clear to me that she is the one who had to be

         24  present in this hearing answering our questions.

         25                 Then, saying that, I wish that you
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          2  have a good afternoon, and that it is not too cold

          3  outside, and this hearing at this moment is

          4  recessed.  Thank you very much.

          5                 (Hearing recessed at 5:02 p.m.)
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